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Playing a Full Round
Hailing from 15th century Scotland, modern Golf  is a club and ball sport.  Using a set of  clubs, 
the object of  the game is to deposit a pock marked ball into the holes spread across the golf  
course. Played individually for hours over thousands of  yards of  land, the sport is a test of  
character and demands a composed temperament. Delivering a good performance is all about: 
Endurance, Self-Discipline, Perspective, Optimism and Creativity. 

Moving through the round with a consistent attitude, a successful golfer plays distinct strokes to 
achieve precise outcomes. Setbacks on the way are taken as feedbacks. And when the time is 
ripe, courageously creative strokes are played to get back onto the scoreboard. 

Similar to the spirit of  a successful golfer, Central Depository Company too strives for success 
with consistency and passion. 

Rising with an absolute role to make Pakistan Capital Market more efficient and secure for 
investors, CDC plays strategic strokes of  automation coupled with risk management to 
streamline operations and bring about operational efficiency in the market. Having started off  
with a market-shaping service, the Company introduces efficient technological solutions time 
and again to offer investors an experience par excellence.

With evolution, come challenges. Maintaining a positive outlook, CDC takes to innovative hits 
and continues to introduce diversified services. With a consistent attitude, CDC lives up to its 
inherent role of  strengthening the marketplace and framing a sustainable field for investment in 
Pakistan.

The game is still on and CDC looks forward to playing a full round. 





Setting 
Out In
Full Swing



A round of  Golf  begins with a full swing stroke, sending the ball up in the air. 
The impact delivered from the club to the ball determines the trajectory of  the ball, 
the aim being to land it on the green in as few strokes as possible. 

It is right here, at the teeing stroke that a Golfer has the greatest potential of  setting 
the odds in his favor. The start is where the foundation is laid. The beginning is 
where the end is born. 

CDC played its first stroke with the launch of  the Central Depository 
System (CDS), setting out in full swing on a course of  eliminating physical 
securities and introducing the electronic equivalent in form of  the 
book-entry system. The risk of  damaged, lost, forged or duplicate shares was 
eradicated. This move revolutionized the Capital Market operations. The 
perspective was clear; analyzing market needs, automating the system and 
creating an environment conducive for safe and secure investment. 

Playing with a spirit to offer genuine services, CDC won customer 
confidence along the way, establishing the Company as the most reputable 
name in the industry with a winning spirit of  providing superior services 
with equally superior performance.  With market trust on our side, the 
round offered much allowance for growth and expansion. 



Rolling 
Towards Desired 
Opportunities



After the first stroke, the ball may come to rest anywhere between the teeing ground 
and the green. The golfer starts to walk towards the ball to strike it again, continuing 
with the cycle as many times as required until the ball makes it to the ultimate 
destination - the putting hole. 

Perseverance is a trait no golfer can do without. Striking till they succeed. 

CDC entered the game as a reformer. The automation process gave rise to 
fresh challenges. Holding firm to its enduring spirit, CDC kept rolling 
towards fulfilling the emerging market demands with its innovative resolve. 

In 1999, with the resolve to empower investors, CDC offered retail investors 
direct access to their investment portfolios through a unique solution of  
Investor Account Services (IAS). This redefining process continued when the 
Company further enhanced efficiency of  its Central Depository System by 
introducing eCDS (a re-engineered application) to handle advanced 
operations and render the system flexible to absorb changes required from 
time to time. 



Advancing 
with a Positive 
Approach



The goal of  getting the ball into the hole in as few strokes as possible may be 
impeded by obstacles such as rough (long grass) and hazards (lakes and bunkers). 
Once the ball comes in contact with these it gets harder to strike it back onto the 
fairway.

Looking beyond these challenges, the golfer always focuses on the green. Valued is not 
only the end, but the game in between.

Serving investors for over 18 years, our legacy has been one of  advancing 
with competence and professionalism. By staying optimistic about our 
aptitude, we adopted new technological solutions, established diversified 
services, and received recognition from both our stakeholders and other 
market players. 

CDC takes pride in having introduced its Trustee and Custodial Services
in 2002 which acquired 95% share of  the Mutual Funds market in just 
over a decade. Another leading-edge achievement was scored in the form of  
Share Registrar Services, which currently holds the third largest client 
portfolio in the market. 



Putting Multiple 
Goals with 
Precision



The last step of  playing a hole is known as ‘putting’. Being the most crucial 
component of  the game, this one is a light stroke which aims to roll the ball into 
the cup. 

While closing in on the target, a skillful, creative strike is all it takes to bag victory. 

As a major player of  the industry, CDC takes pride in having putt goals with 
precision on several occasions. The Company’s creative maneuvering through 
the business led to the introduction of  efficiency and transparency in the 
financial market. With an inherent propensity to embrace innovation, we 
established a market-shaping portfolio of  diversified services, winning trust of  
our clients and a reliable standing in the corporate world. 

With consistent effort, came newer opportunities. Moving beyond the local 
arena, the Company’s exceptional performance led it to global forums, 
making CDC an integral member of  a number of  International Bodies 
including the likes of  ACG, WFC and ISSA. Exchanging ideas and practices 
with pro-league players of  the global financial market allowed for higher 
standards of  service and better service experience for CDC’s clientele. 



Classifying 
Performance
at Par



Each hole has a par. ‘Par’ is defined as the minimum number of  strokes a skilled 
golfer would play to complete the hole. Generally, a golfer’s score is expressed as the 
difference between the actual number of  strokes played and the par value. 

To rise above the bar, beat the Par. 

We are in the business of  offering security. To ensure customer satisfaction 
and achieve excellence as a custodian, CDC had to achieve highest business 
proficiency. Striving to offer the best, we have time and again adopted 
internationally acclaimed practices to beat the Par. 

Setting the bar high, CDC adopted new technological solutions and 
established an information security management system to troubleshoot 
systemic hazards and offer the best standards of  service. These efforts were 
recognized and CDC has been awarded the ISO/IEC 27001:2005. Another 
distinct measure was the development of  a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to 
sustain critical functions of  the Company in case of  a disaster. Valuing the 
journey of  growth, we continuously strive to upgrade our technology 
infrastructure and information security programs to match international 
benchmarks. 
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MISSION
Provide secure, reliable and innovative solutions that 
systematically reduce risk, enable transparency and bring 
efficiencies to Capital & Financial markets. 

To be the center of  excellence by continuously employing state 
of  the art technology and best talent while maintaining good 
corporate governance. 

Provide employees with an environment of  professional & 
personal growth and; we firmly believe in giving back to the 
community.



VISION
To be a world-class institution providing innovative and 
reliable services primarily to the capital and financial markets, 
stimulating business growth and maximizing benefits for all 
stakeholders.
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RELIABILITY
• Reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders.
• Ensure integrity and security of  information.

INTEGRITY
• Fair & honest in all dealings.
• Be responsible for actions.
• Strive to perform to the best of  our abilities.

TRANSPARENCY
• Policies & procedures are clearly defined, well communicated and  
 applied equally to all.
• Make adequate disclosure of  company information.
• Strong adherences to the best practices of  Corporate Governance.

TEAMWORK
• Build strong relationships within and across functions.
• Share ideas / best practices and value diversity. 
• Communicate candidly and on an ongoing basis within team.
• Continue to promote a culture of  open communication at work.

CORE VALUES
Our Corporate values represent the core priorities in the 
organization’s culture. Adherence to these values makes it possible 
to continue on the road to sustainable development. Through 
corporate social responsibility, honor our commitments to clients, 
partners & shareholders and employees being our most valuable 
resource.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief  Executive Officer

Muhammad Hanif Jakhura joined CDC in 1994 and was elevated to the position 
of CEO in March 2002. He was also appointed as the first Chief Executive Officer 
of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) in January 2002 and 
served in that position as well up to September 2005.

Mr. Jakhura’s initiative in adopting diversification as one of CDC’s major strategic 
objectives has resulted in the establishment of CDC’s Trustee & Custodial 
Services and Registrar & Transfer Agent services, both of them becoming trend 
setting services in their respective industry sectors.

Mr. Jakhura has also been elected as the Chairman of Executive Committee of 
Asia-Pacific Central Securities Depository Group for three years starting from 
2014. With this appointment, he represents the Asia-Pacific Region on the Execu-
tive Board of World Forum of CSDs (WFC), the global body of five regional CSD 
associations. Mr. Jakhura has represented both CDC and the Pakistan Capital 

Market on several national, regional and international platforms like the Association of National Numbering Agencies (ANNA) based in 
Brussels and International Securities Services Association (ISSA).

He is also serving as a Director in Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG), Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan (formerly 
Institute of Capital Markets), and ITMinds Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of CDC). Since 2015, he serves as the head of a committee 
(formed by SECP) that has been given the mandate to help establish “Capital Market Hubs” in second tier cities of Pakistan to attract 
savings for investments in capital market. The first successful pilot project has been established in Abbottabad. 

Mr. Jakhura has also participated in the Advance Management Program, an executive course offered by Harvard Business School, the 
purpose of which was to accelerate leadership development of the participants.  

Mr. Jakhura is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and a Certified Director from the Institute of 
Corporate Governance since 2007.

Husain Lawai
Chairman

Mr. Husain Lawai is Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Summit Bank 
Limited. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Institute of Bankers Pakistan 
and Chairman of the Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer 
Healthcare Pakistan Limited. Furthermore, he also serves on the boards of 
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan, Wyeth Pakistan Limited and The Searle Company 
Limited.

 
Mr. Lawai is a seasoned banker with vast experience in the banking and financial 
services industry of this region. He is credited with being a key enabler of the 
local Islamic banking system through the formation of Faysal Islamic Bank, the 
first Islamic Shariah Compliant Bank of Pakistan. His significant career has seen 
him serve, most recently, as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Summit 
Bank, a position he retired from in February 2016, and previously as the 
President and CEO of MCB Bank, Regional General Manager, Faysal Islamic Bank, 
and Regional General Manager for Emirates NBD. 

Internationally, he has notably served as the Director of Security Investment and 
Finance Limited – United Kingdom, External advisor to several UK & European Banks. Apart from this, Mr. Husain is a member of the 
Board of Governors of Karachi Grammar School and served as Member of Board of Governors of Virtual University, Lahore. 

He holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from Institute of Business Administration, Karachi.
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Abid Ali Habib
Director

Mr. Abid Ali Habib is the Chairman and Chief Executive of Abid Ali Habib 
Securities (Private) Limited and the Director of Aba Ali Habib Securities (Private) 
limited. 

Mr. Habib has been nominated on CDC’s Board by the PSX’s Board of Directors. 
At CDC, he also serves as Deputy President of Disciplinary Tribunal and is a 
member of the Audit Committee. In the past, he has been elected as Director of 
the Exchange (now PSX) for various terms between the years 1995 and 2011. 
During these years, he has served on various Committees constituted by the 
Board, as Chairman or member.

He played the central role in conceptualization, planning and design of 
internet-based order routing system and also supervised, implemented and 
tested Karachi Automated Trading System. As member of Demutualization 
Committee of KSE during the years 2005, 2006 and 2010, Mr. Habib was the key 

figure in preparation of Preliminary Report on proposed demutualization of KSE, identifying various issues and recommendations 
thereon, in line with existing models and international practices. 

Mr. Habib held in past the position of Chairman, Companies Affairs/Corporate Governance Committee of KSE for the years 2010 and 
2011. Some of the major achievements of this term included (i) various amendments in Listing Regulations; (ii) amendments in the 
Regulations related to price discovery; (iii) transparency in bidding process for offer of securities by developing an In – House Software; 
(iv) implementation of regulations in order to promote listing of Privately Placed Debt Securities to QIB’s on Over – the – Counter Market; 
(v) development of regulations for the promotion of listing of securities; (vi) major amendments  in the Criteria for Selection of Top 
Companies were implemented; (vii) action against Delinquent / non – performing companies in violation of listing regulations was 
incorporated; (viii) revision of listing fee; (ix) implementation of regulations for verifications of rumor mongering; and (x) amendments in 
the Regulations pertaining to disclosure of information. 

Presently, Mr. Habib is Chairman of Trading and Commercial Affairs Committee and acting as a member of Human Resources & 
Remuneration Committee, Investment Committee and Voluntary Delisting Committee of PSXs Board besides being an active member of 
Divestment Committee. 

Ahsan Muhammad Saleem
Director

Mr. Ahsan M. Saleem is Group Chief Executive of Crescent Steel and Allied 
Products Limited and has over 33 years of extensive industry experience. He is 
a leader in managing multiple, large business operations in various sectors 
including Sugar, Textiles and Engineering. He also serves on several profession-
al Boards as a non-executive director.

Mr. Saleem is a fellow of the Institute of Directors, U.K, a member of CEO’s 
organization and World Presidents Organization and a member of 1001- a 
nature trust.

Mr. Saleem is a strong supporter of education and is actively involved in key 
leadership roles in local, regional and international developmental organiza-
tions. He is one of the five founders of The Citizens Foundation (TCF) and 
currently serves on its Board. He has previously served as Chairman of the 
Board of TCF, for two terms.

He also serves as Trustee of COMMECS Education Trust, a not for profit trust 
formed by Old Students of Government College of Commerce and Economics, providing tertiary level education in Karachi. Mr. Saleem 
is a founding member and serves on the Board of Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.
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Muhammad Aslam
Director

Mr. Muhammad Aslam belonged to the Federal Government’s Secretariat Group 
and retired as Joint Secretary on 14th August, 2015 from Debt Office, Finance 
Division. He has extensive experience of holding important administrative 
positions in various Ministries. 

Mr. Aslam has served as Director on IDBL’s Board from 2012 to 2014 and has 
been re-elected on IDBL’s Board for a term of three years with effect from 29th 
May, 2014. Previously, he has served as Director on Equity Participation Fund 
(EPF) Board. Mr. Aslam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from University 
of Punjab, Lahore and attended various trainings in Pakistan, USA, UK and China.

Muhammad Tariq Rafi
Director

Mr. Tariq Rafi is the Chairman of Siddiqsons Group and is a recipient of the 
coveted Civil Award, Sitara-e-Imtiaz. He was awarded the prestigious Best 
Businessman award for the year 1999 and best Export Trophies between the 
years 1980 to 2005. He has recently been awarded the Privilege Card by the 
Prime Minister of Islamic Republic of Pakistan for being one of the top tax payers. 
He is also the Honorary Consul General of the Republic of Serbia. At MCB Bank, 
he is on the board since privatization of the bank and presently is the member of 
the Audit Committee and Write-off & Waiver Committee.

Currently, he is a Director at MCB Bank Limited, Siddiqsons Limited, Siddiqsons 
Tin Plate Limited, Siddiqsons Energy and Triple Tree (Pvt.) Limited (Ocean Tower). 

Ayaz Ahmed
Director

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed is the Head, Acquisitions and Investments of Habib Bank 
Limited (HBL) and a member of the Management Forum of the Bank. He joined 
HBL in the capacity of CFO in 2000. He had served as HBL’s Chief Information 
Officer for several years and was involved in its large scale technology and 
process reengineering. His area of expertise is in supply chain and 
straight-through-processing. 

Presently, he is a Director of Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited and Central 
Depository Company. In the past, he has served as a Director on the Board of 
Habib Allied Bank (Plc.) UK. He has also served as the Chairman of 1Link – 
National Switch, NIFT – National Cheque Clearing Company and Habib Currency 
Exchange (Pvt.) Limited.

Mr. Ahmed is an active member of ICAP where he has served on several 
committees including the Banking subcommittee and the Professional 
Standards & Technical Committee and also as a member of the Quality 

Assurance Board. He is a Senior Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (since 1984), having trained with Arthur 
Andersen and has completed his Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, UK. Mr. 
Ahmed is an Alumni of Harvard Business School, Boston.
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Moin M. Fudda 
Director

Mr. Moin M. Fudda has over 40 years of rich and unique blend of profes-
sional experience which encompasses working for the corporate sector and 
performing diplomatic duties. He holds an MBA (Insurance & Risk Manage-
ment) from St. Jones University, New York, and B.S. (Insurance & Economics) 
from R.C.D. College of Insurance, Tehran. He is a Certified Corporate Gover-
nance Trainer by International Finance Corporation (IFC) since 2010 and is a 
Member of Faculty at the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 
(PICG). He is an Independent Director on the Board of Wyeth Pakistan Ltd. 
where he is also Chairman of the Audit Committee. He also serves as an 
Independent Director on the Board of Al Meezan Management Limited. He 
is a Nominee Director of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) on the Board of Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) and is a Member of its 
Regulatory Affairs, Audit, Human Resources & Remuneration and Voluntary 
De-listing Committees. Mr. Fudda has been nominated by PSX on the Board 
of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) where he also 
serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the 
Disciplinary Panel and Investment Committee as well as a Member Board of 
Directors of ITMinds Ltd, subsidiary of CDC. He is also a Nominee Director of 

PSX on the Board of PICG and a Member of its Task Force to review the Code of Corporate Governance 2009.

Since 1990, he has been serving as the Honorary Consul General of New Zealand for Pakistan. From early 2016 he has been 
appointed as a Country Representative for SCOR – A Global 1 Tier Reinsurer. He is a founder Member of Board National Center 
for Dispute Resolution (formerly KCDR), a Member, Board of Karachi Council on Foreign Relations as well as a Member of the 
Executive Committee of English Speaking Union of Pakistan. Moreover, since 2003, he continues to serve as a Chairman/Mem-
ber of various Alternate Dispute Resolution Committees (ADRC) formed by the Federal Board of Revenue. He is a Member of 
the Task Force formed by the Ministry of Finance to promote Corporate Governance in Public Sector Enterprises (PSEs).

He has also worked for Stewart Wrightson (Member of Lloyds of London) at its office in Tehran, American International Group 
(AIG) in its head office in New York as well as an Adjunct Assistant Professor at The College of Insurance, New York. He has been 
the Executive Director, Reinsurance, Pakistan Insurance Corporation, Country Chief of New Zealand Insurance and Commercial 
Union now AVIVA and Managing Director of Commercial Union Life, now Jubilee Life Insurance. He is currently a Member of the 
Insurance Consultative Group formed by SECP.

He was Nominee Director of the Management Association of Pakistan (MAP) on the Board of the then Karachi Stock Exchange 
(KSE) in 1999/2000 and thereafter as its Managing Director from 2002 to 2005. During the same period, he represented KSE at 
various National and International Forums and also served as a Member of Technical Committee of South Asian Federation of 
Exchanges and Chairman of the Task Force on Corporate Governance at Federation of European and Asian Stock Exchanges. 
He was nominated and then elected as the Chairman of the Board of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, Chairman 
of the Audit Committee of the Board of Central Depository Company of Pakistan and a founding Managing Director of the 
National Commodity Exchange, now Pakistan Mercantile Exchange.

From September 2005 till January 2016, he remained Country Director of Center for International Private Enterprise (CIPE) 
Pakistan. From, February 2015 to December 2015 Mr. Fudda has also served as the Chairman of the Board of formerly 
Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited. Earlier he held other prominent positions such as President of the Overseas Investors 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI), Management Association of Pakistan (MAP) and the Karachi Boat Club. He has also 
been a Member, Board of the Privatization Commission and Board of Investment (Government of Pakistan), Pakistan Institute 
of Management (PIM), Federation of Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FPCC&I), Pakistan Britain Business Advisory 
Group and Indus Valley School of Arts and Architecture. He was appointed as a Member of Committees on Anti-Money 
Laundering and Transfer Pricing by the SECP and a Member of National Policy Platform for Competitiveness & Economic 
Growth by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

In 2006, Mr. Fudda was awarded Sitara-e-Imtiaz (S.I.) conferred by the President of Pakistan. In 2002, he was recognized as the 
Honorary Officer of the New Zealand Order of Merit (ONZM) and in 1990 NZ Commemoration Medal was conferred by the 
Queen of New Zealand. In the year 1989 Mr. Fudda was awarded the Best Managers Award by Institute of Business Administra-
tion (IBA) Karachi.
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Muhammad Yasin Lakhani
Director

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani is the Chief Executive of Lakhani Securities 
(Private) Limited. His previous experience includes the position of 
President/Chairman of Karachi Stock Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange) 
during the years 1994, 1998-99, 2001 and 2005. In addition to above, he has 
been elected as director of KSE several times during the years 1969-2012. He has 
also served as Chairman of a number of committees of the Exchange for various 
terms.

Mr. Lakhani was a member of Pakistan's delegation in the Investment 
Conferences held in Seoul, Hong Kong, Singapore and London. He also 
represented Pakistan at the Asia Pacific Forum on Securities Market Regulations 
& Supervision, General Assembly of the Euro Asia Stock Markets and Capital 
Market Forum of Islamic Countries. Moreover, he was a member of the 
Committee on Code of Corporate Governance formed by Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan.

Mr. Lakhani has played an instrumental role in helping set up the Central 
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), where he served as Chairman and member of its Board also. He is credited for 
introducing Investors Account Services in CDC in 1999. He has been a founder member of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 
(NCCPL) as well.

Mr. Lakhani is also the Chairman of Investment Committee and a member of Audit Committee, Human Resources & Remuneration 
Committee, Taxation Committee, Voluntary De-listing Committee and Divestment Committee of the Exchange. 

Currently, he serves as a Director on the boards of PSX, CDC and NCCPL. He is also the President of KSE Stockbrokers’ Association. He 
holds the degrees of B.A. (Hons.) and Masters in International Relations, both in 1st position and securing Gold medal in Masters.

Naveed Amin
Director

Mr. Naveed Amin joined LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly: Lahore Stock 
Exchange Limited) on June 8, 2016 as its Chief Executive Officer/Managing 
Director.  He is a Fellow Member (FCA) of Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) and possess considerable experience in the corporate 
management coupled with the sound operational experience at the helm of 
affairs of three Non-Banking Financial Institutions (2009-2014). He had been the 
Chief Executive Officer of Grays Leasing Limited, Invest Capital Investment Bank 
Limited and SME Leasing Limited. 

Before joining LSE Financial Services Limited, he was the Director 
Communication and Business Development of JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company 
Limited.

In the year 2014, he was the Senior Vice Chairman of NBFI and Modaraba 
Association of Pakistan. Presently, he is representing on the Board of National 
Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as Nominee Director of LSEFSL. 
He is also a Director in First IBL Modaraba and a Life Member of Lahore Tax Bar 
Association. 
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Shahid Ghaffar 
Director

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar is the Managing Director of National Investment Trust 
Limited (NITL). Prior to joining NIT, he was working as Head of Investor Relations 
and Corporate Representation as well as member of Management Forum at 
Habib Bank Limited (HBL). He has also served as Chief Executive Officer of HBL 
Asset Management Limited for over six years.

Mr. Ghaffar has held key positions in the areas of asset management, capital 
market regulation and governance. At Securities And Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP), he served as Executive Director/Commissioner from 2000 to 
2005 and played a vital role towards implementation of wide ranging reforms in 
the Capital Market and capacity building of Securities Market Division. While 
working as Managing Director/CEO Karachi Stock Exchange during his two 
years’ tenure (1998-2000) he introduced effective risk management measures 
and was also instrumental in the automation of trading and enhancing capacity 
building. 

During the period 1977-1998, Mr. Ghaffar served National Investment Trust Limited (NITL) in different capacities in the Asset 
Management Division and at various stages; he was responsible for managing the equity market portfolio, debt/fixed income portfolio 
and the trading desk. In 1996, Mr. Ghaffar was entrusted with the responsibility of Asset Management Division. He actively participated 
in the reconstruction of NIT during the crisis period i.e. 1996-1998.

Mr. Ghaffar holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from Gomal University – K.P.K, Pakistan. He has attended several courses 
on Securities Regulations and Securities Markets Development and Portfolio Management including the prestigious course conducted by 
Securities and Exchange Commission, in Washington, DC (USA).

Syed Majid Ali
Director

Syed Majid Ali, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan, is serving as Chief Financial Officer at Faysal Bank Limited. He has over 
25 years of diversified experience of progressively increasing responsibility in 
the accounts and finance disciplines of banking, with exposure in Strategy, IT 
and HR activities. He has been associated as a CFO with Emirates Bank Interna-
tional and Saudi Pak Commercial Bank, as well as with KPMG as Partner.

He is a member of the Income Tax Bar Association, Karachi; Accounting and 
Taxation Committee of Pakistan Banking Association and Taxation Committee 
of Pakistan Business Council.
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MANAGEMENT

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief  Executive Officer

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief  Operating Officer

Syed Asif  Shah
Chief  Information Officer
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Atiqur Rehman
Head of  Trustee & 
Custodial Services-Unit 1

Shariq Jafrani
CFO & Company Secretary

Hammad Ali Faisal
Chief  Internal Auditor

Badiuddin Akbar
Chief  Compliance & Risk Officer

M. Anwar Gopalani
Chief  Human Resource Officer

 Junaid Shekha
CEO -  ITMinds Limited

Shariq Naseem
Head of  PD & Marketing

Farooq Hussain
Head of  Administration

Abdul Samad
Head of  Trustee & Custodial Services
- Unit II and Share Registrar Services



CDC TIMELINE

1993
Experts from 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers 
conduct a study to 
develop a conceptual 
framework for the 
depository. The United 
States Agency for 
International 
Development (USAID) 
sponsors the study and 
the report lays the 
foundation for depository 
design.

1994
The Board of Directors at CDC 
award a turnkey contract to an 
IBM consortium for the 
implementation of the 
depository system in Pakistan. 
The IBM consortium proposes a 
comprehensive Master 
Implementation Plan to the CDC 
Board after a detailed analysis of 
National requirements, 
Company & Banking laws, 
Regulations & Procedures and 
Financial Organizational aspects 
of the project.

1995
CDC board 
approves Master 
Implementation Plan.

1997
Promulgation of Central 
Depositories Ordinance & 
Central Depositories Act.

Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan 
Limited Regulations 
developed and approved by 
the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan.

September 3 – CDC starts 
operations. Central 
Depository System 
Launched.

1999
Launch of Investor 
Account Services for 
individual and corporate 
investors enabling them 
to directly open and 
maintain accounts with 
CDC.

Induction of Term 
Finance Certificates 
(TFCs) into CDS.

2000
Development of CDC 
Contingency Site.

Introduction of Electronic 
Merger of Securities 
Facility in CDS.

2002
Launch of Trustee & 
Custodial Services for 
Mutual Funds.

Introduction of 
Consolidation 
/Sub-division of 
Securities.

2003
Introduction of Element 
Training Program for 
CDS users.

Induction of WAPDA 
bonds into CDS.
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2005
Series of Investment Road Shows in 
major cities of Pakistan.

Deployment of Re-engineered 
Central Depository System.

Induction of Open-end Mutual 
Funds in CDS.

2006
Inauguration of CDC House.

Hosts 10th Annual General Meeting 
of Asia-Pacific Central Securities. 
Depositories Group (ACG) in Karachi.

Holds ‘Investment Road Shows’ in 
Dubai and Abu Dhabi.

An independent brand-recall survey 
published in ‘Money’ magazine rates 
CDC as one of the top four brands in 
the country’s Investment Sector.

Launch of CDC access IVR and Web.

Inauguration of Lahore Office.

2007
Completes a decade 
of CDS operations.

Holds ‘Capital Market 
Days’ in London and New 
York.

Development of UIN 
(Universal Identification 
Number) for Corporate.

2004
Complete 
implementation of 
National Clearing & 
Settlement System 
(NCSS).

2008
Launch of Share Registrar 
Services for Issuers and their 
shareholders.

Introduces Fund 
Management  System. 

CDC conducts Customer Satisfaction & Brand Awareness 
Survey through Gallop. According to survey results, CDC is 
rated Pakistan’s most recognized and prominent financial 
brand.
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CDC TIMELINE

2010

2009
Becomes ISO/IEC 27001:2005 
certified for overall depository 
operations including functional, 
technical and legal aspects.

Implements Induction of Unpaid 
Rights in Central Depository 
System.

CDC’s Trustee & Custodial Services 
(T&C) acquires 100 funds.

Exponentially reduces Services Tariff.

Inducts National Savings Bonds in CDS.

Holds 3rd Pakistan Day Conference in New York.

Becomes ACCA Approved Employer.

Elected as Executive Committee Member of Asia Pacific 
Depositories Group.

Introduces new Automated Mechanism of Securities 
Transfer in CDS.

2011
Integration of Standard Chartered (Pakistan) Bank’s Straight 
2 Bank with CDC’s Fund Management System.

Government of the Punjab appoints CDC as trustee for 
Punjab Pension Fund.

ITMinds becomes a subsidiary of CDC.

Introduces Free of Cost eStatement and eAlert facilities for 
CDS Account Holders.

Receives CPD Approved Employer status from ACCA 
Pakistan.

CDC Employees conduct Flood Relief activities in interior 
Sindh
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2012
Becomes Custodian of over One Hundred Billion Securities 
worth over 21 billion dollars

Conducts series of Free-of-Cost Investor Awareness Sesssions in 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad.

Becomes First Company in Pakistan to get BS 25999 Certification 
- the British Standard for Business Continuity Management.

Completes 15 years of successful operations.

2014
Initiates settlement services for Government 
Securities traded on PSX.

Conducts Investor Road Shows in 6 major cities 
of Punjab.

CDC Employees conduct Disaster Relief 
activities for Thar Drought affectees. 

2013
Teams up with CFA Institute for 
Employee Development.

Signs MoU with Life Insurance 
companies for Centralized 
Information Sharing Solution.

Becomes Secretariat of 
Asia-Pacific Central Securities 
Depositories Group (ACG) for 
2014-16.

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura, 
CEO-CDC elected as the 
Executive Committee Chairman 
of ACG.

2015
Launches Online Transactions service 
through Web.

CDC becomes Trustee of Dolmen City REIT.

CDC Trusteeship exceeds Rs. 500 Billion.

Launches Money Management Workshop

Introduces Direct Settlement Service

Established Pakistan’s First Capital Market 
Business Hub Abbottabad Sarmakayari 
Markaz

Acquires ISO 27001: 2013 certification

2016
Organizes Pakistan Investment Days in 
Dubai   

Acquires International Standards for 
Assurance Engagement (ISAE) Certification.

Online Transaction
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CDC House
99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400

CFO & Company Secretary:

Shariq Jafrani

Registered Office:

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Auditors:

Legal Advisors:

M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.
Advocates

M/s. Bawaney & Partners
Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advisers

M/s. A.K. Brohi & Co.
Legal Consultants & Advocates

M/s. Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultant / Barristers
& Advocate High Courts & Supreme Court

M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates
Advocates & Legal Consultants

M/s. Mandviwalla & Zafar
Advocates

COMPANY INFORMATION

M/s. Hassan Kaunain Nafees
Legal Practitioners & Advisors

M/s. Shah & Michael Law Firm
Advocate

Bankers:

Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

M/s. Ahmed & Qazi
Advocates & Legal Consultants
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SHAREHOLDING

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited *

LSE Financial Services Limited *

Habib Bank Limited *

MCB Bank Limited *

National Investment Trust Limited

Industrial Development Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

Pak China Investment Company Limited

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited *

ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

Allied Bank Limited

IGI Insurance  Limited

Innovative Investment Bank Limited 

Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Limited 

39.8

10

11.35

10

6.35

5.0

5.0

5.0

2.75

2.5

1.0

0.65

0.5

0.1

25,875,200

6,500,000

7,374,901

6,500,000

4,124,900

3,250,000

3,250,000

3,250,000

1,787,500

1,625,000

650,000

422,499

325,000

65,000

S. # Shareholders Total No. of
Shares Held

% of
Shareholding

Total 65,000,000 100%

* The figures include number of shares allotted in the names of nominee directors representing their institutions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Syed Majid Ali

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Aslam

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation
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HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

6

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Syed Majid Ali

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation

1

2

3

4

5

6

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Mr. Muhammad Aslam

Syed Majid Ali

President

Deputy President

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation

DISCIPLINARY PANEL/TRIBUNAL
[Formed under the CDC Regulations for the purpose of conducting Disciplinary Proceedings]

NOMINATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE FOR THE BOARD

1

2

3

4

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Syed Majid Ali

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Abdul Samad

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Mr. Farooq Hussain

Mr. Hammad Ali Faisal

Mr. Junaid Shekha

Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Syed Asif Shah

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation

EXECUTIVE STEERING COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

6

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Mr. Junaid Shekha

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Syed Asif Shah

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

Mr. Husain Lawai

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

S. # Name Designation
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
KEY FIGURES AS OF JUNE 30, 2016 

Total Number
of Shares in CDS

Total Market Capitalization
of Shares in CDS

Percentage of Shares 
in CDS with reference to 

Share Capital*

*e
xc

lu
di

ng
 G

oP
 h

ol
di

ng

Units of Open-End 
Funds in CDS

Units of TFCs, Sukuks
 & Bonds in CDS

Number of 
Sub-Accounts

129
(in Billion)

4,938
(Rs. in Billion)

88%

153
(in Milllion)

86
(in Million)

267,906

Number of Investor
Accounts

50,144

38



Number of Funds under
Trusteeship

Net Assets of Funds
 Under Custody

Total Number of
Securities in IAS

74
(in Billion)

Total Market 
Capitalization

of Securities in IAS

2,681
(Rs. in Billion)

Number of Share 
Registrar Securities

126

254 565
(Rs. in Billion)



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SYSTEM (CDS)
As of June 30, 2016

Transactions handled through CDS
During the Year 2015 - 16

CDS 
ELEMENTS

BREAKUP OF 
SECURITIES

IN CDS

Ordinary Shares

674
Sukuk & Term Finance Certificates

95
Open End Mutual Funds

38

Preference Shares

17
Bonds

1

Participants/Account Holders

801
Securities (Issuer)

822
Eligible Pledgees

94

No. of Transactions

Volume (in Billion)

Deposit FD-Inter-
Participant

FD Intra-
Account

Pledge Withdrawal

70,310

3.35

593,153

61,005

872

371,225

69.52

4.91 21.90 0.17
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INVESTOR ACCOUNT SERVICES (IAS)
As of June 30, 2016

FACTS & FIGURES FOR IAS CLIENTS
As of June 30, 2016

ACTIVATIONS

Jun 16 Jun 15 Jun 14 Jun 13 Jun 12 Jun 11

Participants/Account Holders

Eligible Pledgees

CDS Live Securities

No. of Shares in CDS (in Billion)

Market Capitalization of Shares in CDS (Rs. in Billion)

Investor Accounts (individual and corporate)

No. of Securities in IAS (in Billion)

Market Capitalization of Securities in IAS (Rs. in Billion)

Units of TFCs, Sukuks, Bonds & Open-End Funds  in CDS 
(in Million)

50144

74.15

2681.34

801

94

822

128.68

4938.23

238.98

51262

50.02

2234.43

793

95

819

117.73

4649.56

268.92

50,681

43.93

1775.65

706       

97 

811       

110.35

3,852.07

368.98

48,848

41.31

1223.40

666      

97 

801

107.12

2,706.37

272.48

47,943

38.23

862.30

638 

100

777  

99.17

1,847.20

263.98

52,986

29.40

748.04

633     

100

756       

83.83

1,659.01

263.97

SIX YEARS OPERATIONAL DATA
As of June 30, 2016

Market Capitalization of Securities

Number of Securities

Number of Accounts

No. of IAS A/C

Activation of SMS

Activation of IVR/Web

1,810.58
Rs. in Billion
(Rounded off)

870.76
Rs. in Billion
(Rounded off)

50,144

38,821

27,303

60.78
Rs. in Billion
(Rounded off)

1,485

13.37
Rs. in Billion
(Rounded off)

48,659

Corporate Investor Accounts Individual Investor Accounts
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TRUSTEE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES 
During the Year 2015 - 16

Category wise Assets / Net Assets of Funds
S.# Category of Fund Open End Fund Closed End Fund Voluntary Pension Scheme Total

(Rs. in Billion)
1. Income & Money Market  

Conventional  153.52 - -  153.52 
Islamic  37.91  191.43 - - - -  37.91  191.43

2. Equity
Conventional  120.66  59.44 -  180.10
Islamic  57.54  178.20 - 59.44 - -  57.54  237.64

3. Balanced / Asset Allocation
Conventional  14.49 - -  14.49
Islamic  21.38  35.87 - - - -  21.38  35.87

4. Capital Protected
Conventional  3.79 - -  3.79
Islamic  1.80  5.59 - - - -  1.80  5.59

5. Fund of Funds
Conventional  0.82 - -  0.82
Islamic  29.12 29.94 - 0 - 0  29.12  29.94

6. Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional - - 7.30  7.30
Islamic -  0 - - 11.50  18.80  11.50   18.80 

7. Commodity Scheme
Conventional  0.69 - -  0.69
Islamic -  0.69 - - - - -  0.69

8. Rental REIT Scheme
Conventional - - - -
Islamic - 0  25.90  25.900 - -  25.90  25.90
Total  441.72  85.34  18.80  545.86

9. Discretionary Portfolios (DP) 18.75 18.75
Grand Total 564.61

Category wise Operational Funds
S.# Category of Fund Open End Fund Closed End Fund Voluntary Pension Scheme Total
1. Income & Money Market  

Conventional  49 - - 49
Islamic 17 66 - - - - 17 66

2. Equity
Conventional 23 4 - 27
Islamic 12  35 - 4 - - 12 39

3. Balanced / Asset Allocation
Conventional 16 - - 16
Islamic 11 27 - - - - 11 27

4. Capital Protected
Conventional 3 - - 3
Islamic 2 5 - - - - 2 5

5. Fund of Funds
Conventional 2 - - 2
Islamic 7 9 - - - - - 9

6. Voluntary Pension Scheme
Conventional - - 8 8
Islamic - - - - 9 17 9 17

7. Commodity Scheme
Conventional 3 - - 3
Islamic - 3 -  -  - - - 3

8. Rental REIT Scheme
Conventional - - - 0
Islamic - - 1 1 - - 1 1
Total 145 5 17 167

9. Discretionary Portfolios (DP) 87 87
Grand Total 254
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HUMAN RESOURCES
As of June 30, 2016

YEAR-WISE EMPLOYEE STRENGTH

Islamabad

7
Abbottabad

3

Karachi

375
Lahore

15

LOCATION-
WISE 

EMPLOYEE
STRENGTH

1997
56

1998
62

1999
116

2000
135

2001
170

2002
165

2003
186

2004
211

2005
239

2006
283

2007
306

2008
358

2009
342

2010
346

2011
327

2012
341

2013
336

2014
380

2015
381

2016
400
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FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

BALANCE SHEET Rupees in Million

Share Holders Equity 2,367.959 2,131.316 1,872.549 1,740.768 1,697.622 1,612.921 

Surplus on Revaluation of Property & Equipments  465.863  475.084  483.986  492.571  502.908    - 

Fixed Assets  988.013  970.984  970.468  975.425  992.102  452.289 

Other Non - Current Assets  149.029  117.669  662.672  86.415  140.728  353.836 

Current Assets 2,307.257 2,096.128 1,180.371 1,573.192 1,454.420 1,086.751 

Non - Current Liabilities  182.935  197.686  183.262  186.865  196.634  120.726 

Current Liabilities  427.542  380.695  273.715  214.829  190.087  159.229 

OPERATIONAL RESULTS Rupees in Million

Total Income 1,658.944 1,534.060 1,232.838 1,059.216  975.748  921.517 

Total Expenses  953.487  868.720  755.802  691.870  633.500  655.064 

 705.457  665.340  477.036  367.346  342.248  266.453 

 459.457  431.740  329.025  244.112  224.183  175.203 

DIVIDENDS Rupees in Million

Cash  20.00 211.25  195.00  195.00 195.00  150.00 

Bonus    350.00    -    -    - -    150.00 

 4.35 48.93  59.27  79.88 86.98  85.61 

INFORMATION PER ORDINARY SHARE Rupees in Million

Earnings (pre tax)  10.85  10.24  7.34  5.65  5.27  4.10 

Earnings (after tax)  7.07  6.64  5.06  3.76  3.45  2.70 

Break-up Value  36.43  32.79  28.81  26.78  26.12  24.81 



Shareholders Equity

Rupees in Million

Rupees in Million

Years ended 30 June

Liabilities
Years ended 30 June
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Years ended 30 June

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Total Income

Total Expenses

Rupees in Million

Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Other Non-Current Assets

Earning per Share (EPS)
Years ended 30 June

Rupees Percentages

Net Profit Margin
Years ended 30 June

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Total Income-Total Expenses
Years ended 30 June

0

500

1000

1500

2000 Rupees in Million

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

988.013
149.029

2,307.257

970.984
117.668

2,096.128

970.468
662.672

1,180.371

975.425
86.415

1,573.192

992.102
140.728

1454.420

452.289
353.836

1,658.944
953.487

1,534.060
868.720

1,232.838
755.802

1,059.216
691.870

975.748
633.500

921.517
655.064

1086.751

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
2,367.959 2,131.316 1,872.549 1,740.768 1,697.622 1,612.921

Current Liabilities

182.935
427.542

197.686
380.695

183.262
273.715

186.865
214.829

196.634
190.087

120.726
159.229

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

10.85
7.07

10.24
6.64

7.34
5.06

5.65
3.76

5.27
3.45

4.10
2.70

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

27.70% 28.14% 26.69% 23.05% 22.98% 19.01%

Non-Current Liabilities

Earnings (pre tax)

Earnings (post tax)
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Break-up Value
Years ended 30 June

Rupees

0

5
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15
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35
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2016 2015

Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

Rupees in Million

Percentages
In Times

In Times Percentages

Short Term Solvency Ratio
Years ended 30 June
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Profits
Years ended 30 June

Debt to Equity Ratio
Years ended 30 June

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

Return on Assets
Years ended 30 June

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

Return on Equity
Years ended 30 June

0

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
36.43 32.79 28.81 26.78 26.12 24.81

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
0.08 0.09 0.10 0.11 0.12 0.07

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

705.457
459.457

665.340
431.740

477.036
329.025

367.346
244.112

342.248
224.183

266.453
175.203

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

21.01% 22.08% 18.21% 14.20% 13.54% 10.96%

2014 2013 2012 2011

13.86% 14.40% 12.08% 9.35% 10.01% 9.28%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

5.40
5.34

5.51
5.43

4.31
4.23

7.32
7.22

7.65
7.53

6.83
6.72
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SOURCES OF 
REVENUE
 EARNED

2016

% Change in Income Since 2011
Years ended 30 June

0%

10%

20%
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80%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

APPLICATION
OF REVENUE 

EARNED

% Change in Expenses Since 2011
Years ended 30 June

CDS Operations

920.79 
Trustee & Custodial Services

462.12 
Other Income

166.87

Investor Account Services

69.32 
Share Registrar fee

39.84  

Revenue

1,658.94 
Expenses other than Dep. & Amort

831.00
Net Profit

459.46  

Provision for Tax

246.00 
Depreciation & 
Amortisation

122.49 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
4.85% 5.88% 14.94% 33.78% 66.47% 80.02%

20162011 2012 2013 2014 2015
4.18% (3.29%) 5.62% 15.38% 32.62% 45.56%
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

PROFITABILITY RATIOS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

42.52% 43.37% 38.69% 34.68% 35.08% 28.91%

27.70% 28.14% 26.69% 23.05% 22.98% 19.01%

EBITDA Margin to Sales 55.49% 56.37% 54.10% 53.48% 54.84% 51.21%

Debtors Turnover Ratio (times per year) 8.23 9.29  8.47  9.33  10.98  11.08 

Operating Leverage Ratio 0.65 1.54  1.52  0.65  4.76  (0.70)

Return on Equity 21.01% 22.08% 18.21% 14.20% 13.56% 10.96%

Return on Capital Employed 15.79% 16.16% 13.27% 10.13% 10.85% 10.15%

Debtors Collection Period (Days) 44.36 39.31  43.09  39.13  33.23  32.94 

Expense as a %age of Revenue Expense Inc. Dep. & 
Excl. Tax & WWF 57.48% 55.74% 60.52% 64.61% 64.16% 70.38%

LIQUIDITY RATIOS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Current Ratio 5.40 5.51 4.31 7.32 7.65 6.83

Quick/Acid Test Ratio 5.34 5.43 4.23 7.22 7.53 6.72

Cash to Current Liabilities 4.64 4.87 3.48 4.24 4.33 0.96

Cash Flow from Operation to Sales 0.34 0.41 0.39  0.35  0.39  0.34 

Return on Assets 13.86% 14.40% 12.08% 9.35% 10.01% 9.28%

INVESTMENT /  MARKET RATIO 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Earning per Share (before tax) 10.85 10.24  7.34  5.65  5.27  4.10 

Earning per Share (after tax) 7.07 6.64  5.06  3.76  3.45  2.70 

Dividend Payout Ratio 4.35% 48.93% 59.27% 79.88% 86.98% 85.61%

Cash Dividend per Share 0.31 3.25  3.00  3.00  3.00  2.31 

Stock Dividend per Share    5.38    -    -    -    -  2.31 

Dividend Cover Ratio 22.94 2.04  1.69  1.25  1.15  1.17 

Breakup Value  per Share without Surplus on Revalua-
tion of Fixed Assets 36.43 32.79  28.81  26.78  26.12  24.81 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIO 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Net Assets per Share 43.60 40.10  36.25  34.36  33.85  24.81 

Debt to Equity Ratio  0.08 0.09  0.10  0.11  0.12  0.07 
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Year Basis 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Financial 
Position

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

Equity and Liabilities

Total Shareholders Equity  2,367.959 69%  2,131.316 67%  1,872.549 67%  1,740.768 66%  1,697.622 66%  1,612.921 85%

Surplus on Revaluation of 
Property & Equipment  465.863 14%  475.084 15%  483.986 17%  492.571 19%  502.908 19%  - -

Total Non-Current Liabilities  182.935 5%  197.686 6%  183.262 6%  186.865 7%  196.634 8%  120.726 6%

Total Current Liabilities  427.542 12%  380.695 12%  273.715 10%  214.829 8%  190.087 7%  159.229 9%

Total Liabilities  610.477 18%  578.382 18%  456.977 16%  401.694 15%  386.721 15%  279.955 15%

Total Equity & Liabilities  3,444.299 100%  3,184.781 100%  2,813.511 100%  2,635.032 100% 2,587.250 100% 1,892.876 100%

Assets

Total Non-Current Assets  1,137.042 33%  1,088.653 34%  1,633.140 58%  1,061.840 40%  1,132.830 44%  806.125 43%

Total Current Assets  2,307.257 67%  2,096.128 66%  1,180.371 42%  1,573.192 60%  1,454.420 56%  1,086.751 57%

Total Assets  3,444.299 100%  3,184.781 100%  2,813.511 100%  2,635.032 100% 2,587.250 100% 1,892.876 100%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

Operating Income 1,492.076 100% 1,365.339 100% 1,086.771 100% 908.121 100% 816.627 100% 770.542 100%

Operating and Adminsitrative 
Expenses (953.341) 64% (868.578) 64% (755.647) 70% (691.762) 76% (633.388) 78% (654.930) 85%

538.735 36% 496.761 36% 331.124 30% 216.359 24% 183.239 22% 115.612 15%

Other Income 166.868 11% 168.721 12% 146.067 13% 151.095 17% 159.120 19% 150.975 20%

Financial Charges (0.146) 0.01% (0.142) 0.01% (0.155) 0.01% (0.109) 0.01% (0.112) 0.01% (0.134) 0.02%

 705.457 47%  665.340 49%  477.036 44%  367.346 40%  342.248 42% 266.453 35%

Taxation  (246.000) 16%  (233.600) 17%  (148.011) -14%  (123.234) -14%  (118.065) -14%  (91.250) -12%

 459.457 31%  431.740 32%  329.025 30%  244.112 27%  224.183 27% 175.203 23%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

CUMULATIVE BASIS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Financial 
Position

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total Shareholders Equity 2,367.959 147% 2,131.316 135% 1,872.549 118%  1,740.768 110% 1,697.622 107%  1,612.921 102%

Surplus on Revaluation of 
Property  & Equipment 465.863 - 475.084 - 483.986  -  492.571  -  502.908    -  -  - 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 182.935 152% 197.686 146% 183.262 136% 186.865 138% 196.634 145%  120.726 89%

Total Current Liabilities 427.542 269% 380.695 231% 273.715 166% 214.829 130% 190.087 115% 159.229 97%

Total Liabilities 610.477 218% 578.382 193% 456.977 152% 401.694 134% 386.721 129% 279.955 93%

Total Equity & Liabilities 3,444.299 182% 3,184.781 169% 2,813.511 149% 2,635.032 140% 2,587.250 137% 1,892.876 100%

Assets

Total Non-Current Assets 1,137.042 141% 1,088.653 78% 1,633.140 116% 1,061.840 76% 1,132.830 81% 806.125 57%

Total Current Assets 2,307.257 212% 2,096.128 437% 1,180.371 246% 1,573.192 328% 1,454.420 303% 1,086.751 227%

Total Assets 3,444.299 182% 3,184.781 169% 2,813.511 149% 2,635.032 140% 2,587.250 137% 1,892.876 100%

CUMULATIVE BASIS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

Operating Income  1,492.076 194%  1,365.339 167%  1,086.771 133%  908.121 111%  816.627 100%  770.542 94%

Operating and Adminsitrative 
Expenses  (953.341) 146%  (868.578) 125%  (755.647) 109%  (691.762) 100% (633.388) 91%  (654.930) 94%

 538.735 466%  496.761 401%  331.124 267%  216.359 175% 183.239 148%  115.612 93%

Other Income  166.868 111%  168.721 127%  146.067 110%  151.095 114%  159.120 120%  150.975 114%

Financial Charges  (0.146) 108%  (0.142) 18%  (0.155) 20%  (0.109) 14%  (0.112) 14%  (0.134) 17%

 705.457 265%  665.340 260%  477.036 186%  367.346 143%  342.248 134%  266.453 104%

Taxation  (246.000) 270%  (233.600) 267%  (148.011) 169%  (123.234) 141%  (118.065) 135%  (91.250) 104%

 459.457 262%  431.740 256%  329.025 195%  244.112 145%  224.183 133%  175.203 104%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Year on Year Basis
2016

vs
2015

2015
VS

2014

2014
vs

2013

2013
vs

2012

2012
vs

2011

2011
vs

2010

Statement of Financial 
Position

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total Shareholders Equity  2,367.959 111%  2,131.316 114% 1,872.549 108% 1,740.768 103% 1,697.622 105% 1,612.921 102%

Surplus on Revaluation of 
Property & Equipment  465.863 98%  475.084 98%  483.986 98% 492.571 98% 502.908 -  - -

Total Non-Current Liabilities 182.94 93% 197.69 108%  183.262 98% 186.865 95% 196.634 163%  120.726 89%

Total Current Liabilities 427.542 112% 380.695 139% 273.715 127% 214.829 113% 190.087 119% 159.229 97%

Total Liabilities 610.477 106% 578.382 127% 456.977 114% 401.694 104% 386.721 138% 279.955 93%

Total Equity & Liabilities 3,444.299 108% 3,184.781 113% 2,813.511 107% 2,635.032 102% 2,587.250 137% 1,892.876 100%

Assets

Total Non-Current Assets 1,137.042 104% 1,088.653 67% 1,633.140 154% 1,061.840 94% 1,132.830 141% 806.125 57%

Total Current Assets 2,307.257 110% 2,096.128 178% 1,180.371 75% 1,573.192 108% 1,454.420 134% 1,086.751 227%

Total Assets 3,444.299 108% 3,184.781 113% 2,813.511 107% 2,635.032 102% 2,587.250 137% 1,892.876 100%

2016
vs

2015

2015
VS

2014

2014
vs

2013

2013
vs

2012

2012
vs

2011

2011
vs

2010

Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million % Rs. in
million % Rs. in

million %

Operating Income  1,492.076 109%  1,365.339 126%  1,086.771 120%  908.121 111%  816.627 106%  770.542 94%

Operating and Adminsitrative 
Expenses  (953.341) 110%  (868.578) 115%  (755.647) 109%  (691.762) 109% (633.388) 97%  (654.930) 94%

 538.735 108%  496.761 150%  331.124 153%  216.359 118% 183.239 159%  115.612 93%

Other Income  166.868 99%  168.721 116%  146.067 97%  151.095 95%  159.120 105%  150.975 114%

Financial Charges  (0.146) 103%  (0.142) 92%  (0.155) 143%  (0.109) 97%  (0.112) 83%  (0.134) 17%

 705.457 106%  665.340 139%  477.036 130%  367.346 107%  342.248 128%  266.453 104%

Taxation  (246.000) 105%  (233.600) 158%  (148.011) 120%  (123.234) 104%  (118.065) 129%  (91.250) 104%

 459.457 106%  431.740 131%  329.025 135%  244.112 109%  224.183 128%  175.203 104%
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT
The Directors of Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are 
pleased to present their report together 
with the Company’s annual audited 
unconsolidated financial statement for 
the year ended June 30, 2016.

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief  Executive Officer
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Pakistan is currently going through a phase of 
improved security situation, political stability, low 
inflation, better energy supply, and satisfactory 
foreign exchange reserves resulting in GDP growth of 
4.71 percent in the financial year 2015-16. This 
transition is taking place after a difficult period of 
instability, security crisis, high inflationary trends, 
energy shortage, low level of foreign exchange 
reserves and resultantly low GDP growth. 

Low inflationary trends and stability on the external 
front also allowed the SBP to cut the discount rate to 
historically low levels. Total foreign exchange 
reserves of Pakistan have crossed the $22 billion 
mark, on the back of increased worker remittances, 
reduced import bill, continuation of IMF Extended 
Fund Facility (EFF), and support from multilateral 
agencies, coalition support fund and issuance of 
Eurobond in the international market.

CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW

Pakistan Capital Market has seen phenomenal 
developments in the outgoing year, the foremost 
being the integration of the Karachi, Lahore and 
Islamabad Stock Exchanges into a single Pakistan 
Stock Exchange (PSX). Coupled with positive 
macroeconomic indicators, investor and broker 
confidence in the stock market is strong which is 
evident by the all-time high KSE100 index.

The Mutual Funds industry has also shown promising 
growth as total Assets under CDC trusteeship have 
exceeded PKR 600 billion after the close of the 
financial year.

The stock market in Pakistan has come a long way 
since 1991 when the boom resulted from the 
liberalization policies of the then government. We 
have seen many major developments such as 
manifold increase in the trading volumes, 
introduction of automated trading, clearing and 
settlement systems on the pattern of the world's 
modern stock exchanges, as well as intensifying 
competition for the business evident from the quality 
of research being published and distributed. In 
recent years, higher corporate earnings coupled with 
cheap availability of financing led to a persistent bull 
run in the stock market. Continuous reforms 
undertaken by SECP along with the support of 
Self-Regulatory 

Organizations are poised to make the stock market 
more secure and transparent. Future encouraging 
indicators for the capital market include Pakistan’s 
induction in the MSCI Emerging Markets Index, 
regaining the status after a gap of eight years. The 
upgraded classification will boost foreign investors’ 
interest in Pakistan Capital Market. Further, 
demutualization of Pakistan Stock Exchange is 
already underway with divestment of shares to a 
strategic investor, financial institutions and the 
general public. The strategic investor is expected to 
introduce modern technology, expertise and 
financial resources to bring PSX at par with 
international stock exchanges and increase both 
foreign and local investors’ confidence. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The FY 2015-16 was another successful year where 
CDC continued to achieve all time high revenue and 
profits. The Company’s revenue for the year 2015-16 
is Rs. 1,659 million against Rs. 1,534 million of 
previous year showing a growth of 8%. The profit 
before and after tax is Rs. 705 million and Rs. 459 
million respectively showing the growth of 6% each 
compared to the previous year’s results. 

54

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500



MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS
Launch of Assets under Custody Regime 

After the promulgation of the Limit on Assets under 
Custody Regime, CDC played an active role in the 
successful implementation of the Regime. The major 
responsibilities of CDC are:

• Collection of Financial Statements or Auditor’s   
 certificate

• Calculation of Capital Adequacy

• To take appropriate action in case of    
 non-compliance

Direct Settlement Services (DSS)

CDC has launched a safe and secure solution to 
enhance the Capital Market experience by providing 
investor protection through Direct Settlement 
Services (DSS). Traditionally, it was mandatory for 
investors to open a Sub Account with CDC which was 
opened under the Participant umbrella of a broker. 
All the operations including settlement of investor 
trades (cash and securities) were handled by the 
broker, while an alternate account with CDC i.e. IAS 
account was used for keeping the securities for 
custody purposes only. After subscribing to DSS, CDC 
takes over the responsibility of settling investor 
trades (cash and securities) through the IAS Account. 
Securities will be moved in and out of the IAS account 
in case of buying/selling transactions. 

By introducing this web-based service, CDC has 
offered the most secure way to trade in the Stock 
Market with the utmost level of control. Via this 
facility, investors have complete control over their 
assets without the need of opening a sub-account 
with brokers.

CDC Access Online Transactions

CDC has launched CDC Access Online Transactions, a 
service which allows Investor Account Holders to 
initiate Portfolio Transfers on real-time basis directly 
through the CDC Access web portal without any 
paper work or manual effort. Through the 
subscription of this service, account-holders can also 
avail the benefit of online reports and gain access to 
vital information pertaining to their account by the 
simple click of a button. Furthermore, there is also no 
need for any signature verification and is completely 
cost effective.  

Establishment of First Capital Market Business Hub 
(Abbottabad Sarmayakari Markaz)

The SECP has mandated CDC to enhance the 
outreach of Capital Market entities to smaller cities of 
Pakistan in collaboration with other market entities 
and formed a committee under the convenership of 
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura for this purpose. The 
committee proceeded with the establishment of the 
country’s first ever Capital Market Business Hub with 
the name of Abbottabad Sarmayakari Markaz.  

Financial Highlights

  JUNE 30, 2016  JUNE 30, 2015  June 30, 2014

(Rupees in ‘000’)

Operating income 1,492,076      1,365,339      1,086,771

Less: Operating and administrative expenses 935,252       837,590       733,431

556,824        527,749        353,340

Other operating income 166,868 168,721 146,067

Less: Other operating expenses 18,089         30,988         22,217

Less: Financial charges 146 142 155

705,457         665,340         477,036

Less: Income tax expense 246,000 233,600 148,011

459,457        431,740        329,025

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rs.) 7.07                     6.64                     5.06
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Small cities like Abbottabad have untapped savings 
which may result in exponential growth if synergized 
with the right investment options.Capital Market 
Business Hub is a concept of a centralized premises 
where major capital market entities maintain a 
presence. Through this endeavor, the outreach of the 
capital market will be greatly enhanced especially in 
2nd and 3rd tier cities of the country. CDC has 
established the first hub and is the coordinator and 
administrator for the project. Moreover, CDC is also 
actively involved in the promotion of the initiative. 
Several capital market entities have partnered with 
CDC in this endeavor. These entities cover the entire 
spectrum of the capital market. Currently, two 
brokerage houses, six asset management companies 
along with SECP, PSX and CDC with its Investor 
Accounts Services, are maintaining their presence at 
the hub.

Surveillance Audit of ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard 
and readiness of ISAE 3402

CDC is geared up for surveillance audit of ISO/IEC 
27001:2013 and ISAE 3402 standard to be conducted 
by a consultant. The scope includes depository, 
trustee, registrar, back office and CISSII services 
offered by CDC and its subsidiaries.

Business Continuity Capacity Building

CDC ensures delivery of its service by continuously 
building resilience. This year CDC increased seating 
capacity of hot DR site to 130 fully equipped 
workstations, so that in case of disaster vital staff can 
resume services within 2-hour recovery time 
objective (RTO) window.

CDC Mobile App

Staying at par with the changing times, CDC is 
currently developing a digital solution in the form of a 
Mobile Application for the CDC Access remote 
offering. The Mobile Application aims to enable the 
account holders to carry out online transactions and 
view their corporate action diary, transaction status, 
account balance and history through a native  mobile

A tabular presentation reflecting revenue growth of CDC’s main segments over the years is as follows:

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

CDC is the only depository with 100% market share in 
this segment. It continues to maintain more than 95% 
market share of Trustee business. R/TA services have 
shown excellent growth, currently providing services 
to 112 clients. It has recently become one of the top 
three R/TA service providers in the country. 

As evident from the above chart, CDC recorded 
remarkable growth in operational terms which 
translated into increased revenue in these segments. 
Following are the highlights of various segments:

app in a simple and quick way. This application will be 
launched on Android and iOS, platforms. The app 
also aims to provide information about contact 
details. It provides an intuitive interface to put 
together interactive controls and views to keep the 
customers updated on the go.

  

 REVENUE SOURCES CAGR 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

CDS Operations 17.93% 996 934 738 577 515

Trustee & Custodial Services 13.24% 462 403 326 311 281

Share Registrar Services 32.44% 40 34 27 20 13

 

REVENUE
 MIX

Depository Services

60%
Trustee & Custodial
Services

28%  

Other Income

10%
Share Registrar
Fee

2%  
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Total number of funds under Trusteeship

Shares in CDS (in Billion)

2012

99

2013

107

2014

110

2015

118

2016

129

2012

143

2013

148

2014

180

2015

224

2016

254

Trustee and Custodial Services

Trustee and Custodial Services reached an all-time 
high with aggregated net assets of above Rs. 564 
billion with total funds under trusteeship reaching 
254. Trusteeship fee provides visible support to the 
overall revenues of the Company as its contribution 
is 28 percent in current year’s revenue of Rs. 1,659 
million.  With the number of new funds already in the 
pipeline to which the Company has already 
consented to act as trustee, it is likely that revenue 
from this business function will further increase. It is 
worth mentioning that CDC has already been 
appointed as the trustee for the first ever rental REIT 
of Pakistan and consent to act for one other rental 
REIT has been issued.

Central Depository System

The number of securities in CDS increased to 129 
billion which in terms of value amount to Rs.  4.93 
trillion, the highest level in CDC’s history as depicted 
in the graph.

Share Registrar Services

Share Registrar Services now cater to 126 securities, 
including various prominent companies, making its 
position in among the top R/TA service providers.

ITMinds Back Office Services

As the back office agreement with Atlas Asset 
Management Limited (AAML) was signed in March 
2015, its funds were successfully inducted in ITMinds 
portfolio during the financial year 2015-16. This move 
created positive vibes in the industry and will act as 
an incentive for other Asset Management Companies 
(AMCs) to outsource their back office operations to 
ITMinds. 

Moreover, the outsourcing of accounting function of 
CDC to ITMinds will be a stepping stone for ITMinds 
towards diversification of its client portfolio from 
specialized accounting of Mutual Funds industry to 
generalized accounting for other industries in the 
service sector. Further, provision of accounting 
services to the only Depository of Pakistan will lead to 
improved goodwill for ITMinds and will open doors 
for other business avenues.

ITMinds Online portal was launched providing 
mutual fund investors online access to services 
offered by AMCs, powered by ITMinds back office 
accounting services. This has given a competitive 
edge to Mutual Funds’ clients over their competitors 
as few of the AMCs in the industry have this facility. 
The portal provides investor portfolio holdings and 
soon would also offer redemption of units, graphical 
portfolio dashboards and several useful reports. 
Going forward, it will also facilitate the investors to 
execute their transactions while sitting at home, 
bearing no extra cost.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS

The main model of CDC is to convert manual activities 
into electronic which in turn has contributed a lot 
over the years in reducing the use of resources and 
increasing efficiency. 

  

Total number of R/TA customers

2012

50

2013

82

2014

102

2015

109

2016

126
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Sustainability has always existed in every spirit of 
CDC’s business and we believe in being a responsible 
and good corporate citizen by supporting the 
economy we operate in. We are profoundly focused 
on the empowerment of our customers, their success 
and enrichment of their lives as well as of the entire 
community in a broader sense. We consider the 
community and society as our creditors, to whom we 
have to pay back in lieu of the resources they have 
loaned to us.

Bearing the above, our endeavors are fully aligned. 
CDC contributes 2.5% of profit before tax to support 
philanthropic activities. We support a broad range of 
initiatives in the area of health, education, and 
environment protection as we believe they provide 
the fundamental building blocks for the development 
of society.  

The right to learn:

CDC sponsored the construction of a school in 
collaboration with The Citizens Foundation (TCF) in 
Tapo Azeem Shah, Mirpur Khas, Sindh, targeting an 
underprivileged area. The construction has been 
completed and the school is now functional with 234 
students. CDC is also contributing for the school’s 
yearly operational cost. Our aim is to make significant 
infrastructural investment and arrange for qualified 
teachers. 

Greener tomorrow:

Concern for the environment is no longer a fad or “a 
good thing to do”. It is a critical need of the day. We 
are conscious of our responsibility to the 
environment and are serious in our commitment for 
its preservation. CDC replaced fluorescent lamps 
with LED lights, electrical chillers with gas fired 
operation and contributed to minimize pollution by 
making a “Smoke Free” premises for healthy office 
environment.  

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and management of the Company are 
committed to good corporate governance and 
complying with the best practices. 

Pursuant to and in compliance with clause (xvi) of the 
Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are 
pleased to report that:

a) The financial statements present fairly its state  
  of affairs, the results of its operations, cash  
  flows and changes in equity.
  
b) Proper books of accounts of the Company   
  have been maintained.

c)  Appropriate accounting policies have been  
  consistently applied in preparation of financial  
  statements and accounting estimates are   
  based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as  
  applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in  
  preparation of financial statements and any  
  departure therefrom has been adequately   
  disclosed. 
 
e) The system of internal control is sound in   
  design and has been effectively implemented  
  and monitored. The Audit Committee   
  comprises of five members and all the   
  members of the Audit  Committee are   
  non-executive directors. 

f)  The directors are well aware of their duties and  
  responsibilities as outlined by corporate laws. 

g)  There is no doubt about the Company’s ability  
  to continue as a going concern.

h) There has been no material departure from  
  the best practices of corporate governance.

i)  The Pattern of Shareholding is given on Page  
  168

j)  The key operating and financial data of the  
  past six years are given on Page 38 and 44

k)  Note 32 of Financial Statements on staff   
  retirement benefits provide information on the  
  value of  gratuity fund and were recorded as  
  liability.

l)  Note 25.4 and 32 of Financial Statements   
  provide information regarding the value of  
  investment of provident fund and gratuity   
  fund.

Change in the shareholders

In June 2016, Citibank Overseas Investment 
Corporation sold its equity stake of 10% in the 
paid-up capital of the Company equally to Pak China 
Investment Company Limited and Habib Bank 
Limited with the approval of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan in accordance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company. 

58



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Moin M. Fudda 2/2

Mr. Abid Ali Habib 6/7

Syed Majid Ali 6/7

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem 7/7

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed 7/7

Mr. Kamal Afsar

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some 
of the meetings.

3/4
 

Changes in the Board

During the year under review, Mr. Omar Khalil Malik, 
Mr. Mohammed Sohail and Mr. Kamal Afsar resigned 
from the Board and the casual vacancies were filled 
by the appointment of  Mr. Naveed Amin, Mr. 
Muhammad Yasin Lakhani and Mr. Moin M. Fudda 
respectively.  The Board places on record its 
appreciation for the valuable contribution made by 
the outgoing Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to 
perform its duties and responsibilities effectively as 
per its approved terms of reference. The Committee’s 
composition and attendance status is mentioned as 
under:The only change in the Audit Committee 
during the year under review was the appointment of 
Mr. Moin M. Fudda in place of Mr. Kamal Afsar 
subsequent to his resignation from the Board of 
Directors of the Company. 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
reviews the human resource architecture of the 
Company and ensures that the human resource 
strategy is aligned to the overall corporate strategy. 
The Committee’s composition and attendance status 
is mentioned as under:

Board of Directors

CDC’s board comprises of individuals representing 
shareholding institutions as well as one director 
nominated by the SECP. All the Directors of the 
Company meet the eligibility criteria laid down under 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Code of 
Corporate Governance and the Fit & Proper Criteria 
devised by the SECP and incorporated in the 
Company’s Articles of Association

The tenure of office of a director is three years. Upon 
expiry of which, elections are held to appoint a new 
Board in accordance with the statute. Directors 
representing respective shareholding institutions 
have no direct interest in the Company’s business. 

The Board of Directors remained actively involved 
during the year in performing its duties and functions 
as specified under the Code of Corporate 
Governance. CDC has availed the services of Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) for the 
evaluation of the Board’s own performance and 
contribution towards effectiveness.During the year 
under review, ten meetings of the Board of Directors, 
three meetings of the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee and seven meetings of the 
Audit Committee were held. The attendance of the 
Board members in Board meetings was as shown 
below:

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend 
some of the meetings.

Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee Meetings
Mr. Husain Lawai 3/3

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura 3/3

Mr. Abid Ali Habib 1/1

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani 1/1

3/3

Syed Majid Ali 1/1

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik 2/2

Mr. Mohammed Sohail 2/2
 

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some
 of the meetings.

Board Meetings

Mr. Husain Lawai 9/10

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura 9/10

Mr. Abid Ali Habib 10/10

Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem 8/10

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed 10/10

Mr. Moin M. Fudda 3/3

Mr. Muhammad Aslam 10/10

Mr. Naveed Amin 1/1

2/10

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani 3/3

7/10

Syed Majid Ali 9/10

Mr. Kamal Afsar 7/7

Mr. Mohammed Sohail 7/7

Mr. Omar Khalil Malik 7/7
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Directors Training

The directors of the Company have either completed 
formal directors training program or meet the criteria 
of exemption under clause (xi) of the Code.    

Pattern of Shareholding

The Pattern of shareholding and categories of 
shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2016 is 
given on page no.168.

Code of Conduct

As per the Corporate Governance guidelines, the 
Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and  
communicated it throughout the Company along 
with placing it on the Company’s website.

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 
OVERALL CORPORATE STRATEGY

Management has the objective to transform the 
culture of the Company into highly customer-driven, 
empowered and cross-functional in order to 
maximize the return for stakeholders. Management 
has the belief that Quality may not be achieved 
without implementation of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s) in all the critical, contemporary 
areas of performance. CDC’s management continued 
its strategy to ensure sustainability of its operations 
by providing safe and secure services and at the 
same time contributing to capital market 
development. Further, through diversification it has 
also ensured that its financial results are not affected 
by capital market volatility. The results, financial and 
non-financial, are the reflection of achievement of 
management’s objective which are strategically 
placed to increase the wealth of stakeholders. The 
said results are properly evaluated against the 
respective strategic objectives to confirm the 
achievement. There is no material change in 
Company’s objective and strategies from the 
previous year.

Capital Structure and Liquidity Management

The Company’s strategy is to maintain a strong 
capital base which is built on reserves so as to 
maintain investors’, creditors’ and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business. 
This has resulted in Company’s ability to operate in 
an efficient manner to enable it to provide healthy 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders.

During the year an amount of Rs. 506 million was 
generated from operating activities of the Company.

At the year end, the Company had a liquid fund 
position comprising of cash/bank balances and short 
term investments amounting to Rs. 1,984 million 
after investments in capital projects and dividend 
payments.

To ensure sufficient availability of funds at all times 
whilst generating optimum returns through 
placement of surplus liquidity in various available 
investment avenues, the Company has developed 
and implemented a formal cash flow monitoring 
mechanism whereby cash inflows and outflows are 
projected and monitored on regular basis.

The Company is now subject to comply with financial 
resource requirements as envisaged in the Central 
Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations 
after its promulgation in February 2016.

Materiality Approach

Management believes materiality is a key component 
of an effective communication with stakeholders. The 
management has adopted a materiality approach 
which is based on a combination of stakeholder 
engagement, under-standing of environmental limits 
and strategic alignment. It has made the process, 
assumptions and evidence the base for identifying 
material issues for more transparent, credible and 
amenable disclosures to have more transparency on 
risk and opportunities.

Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses as defined in note 3 of 
Financial Statements.

Appropriations 

Your Directors are pleased to recommend bonus 
shares @ 53.846% and cash dividend of Re. 0.3077 
per share (2015: cash dividend Rs. 3.25 per share) of 
Rs. 10 each i.e. 3.077% of the paid-up capital in 
respect of year ended June 30, 2016 in their meeting 
held on August 31, 2016. 
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The unconsolidated financial statements do not 
reflect this proposed dividend which will be 
accounted for in the period in which it is approved by 
shareholders.

Financial Highlights

Key operating and financial data of previous years 
has been summarized and is given on page no.38 and 
44.

Contribution to National Exchequer and Economy

An amount of PKR 246 Million (2015: PKR 233.6 
Million) was contributed during the year in respect of 
Income tax. As a responsible citizen of our country 
your Company contributed 14.83% (2015: 15.23%) of 
total revenue back to the Economy.

Statement as to the Value of Investment of Provident 
Fund

The value of the investment of the provident fund is 
PKR 48.5 Million.  

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the company 
and the date of this report.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function is effectively operating 
within the framework set out in the Code of 
Corporate Governance and the charter defined by 
the Audit Committee of the Board. The Board relies 
on the inputs and recommendations of the Internal 
Audit function through its Audit Committee on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in the 
organization and takes appropriate measures.

External Auditors

The present auditors of the company M/s.  Grant 
Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, 
audited the financial statements of the Company and 
have issued unqualified report to the members. The 
auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annual 
General Meeting. Being eligible they have offered 
themselves for re-appointment.

The Board have recommended the appointment of 
M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered 
Accountants as auditor for the ensuing year, as 
suggested by the Audit Committee, subject to 
approval by members in the 24th Annual General 
Meeting. Being eligible they have offered 
themselves for re-appointment. The Board have 
recommended the appointment of M/s. Grant 
Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants 
as auditor for the ensuing year, as suggested by 
the Audit Committee, subject to approval by 
members in the 24th Annual General Meeting. 
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For and on behalf of the Board

Karachi, dated: Wednesday, August 31, 2016

-Sd-

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer
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Shares in CDS (in Billion)

2012

99

2013

107

2014

110

2015

118

2016

129

2012

143

2013

148

2014

180

2015

224

2016

254

  

2012

50

2013

82

2014

102

2015

109

2016

126
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REVENUE
 MIX

Depository Services

60%
Trustee & Custodial
Services

28%  

Other Income

10%
Share Registrar
Fee

2%  

CAGR 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

17.93% 996 934 738 577 515

13.24% 462 403 326 311 281

32.44% 40 34 27 20 13
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556,824       527,749
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18,089        30,988
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705,457        665,340

246,000233,600

459,457       431,740

7.07                    6.64
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       353,340
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        22,217
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        477,036

148,011

       329,025
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PLAYING A
FULL ROUND
With Strokes of  Integrity, Innovation 
and Excellence



Golf  is a game of  gentlemen. 

A seemingly slow paced sport played by men and women in khakis and polo shirts, Golf  is known 
as a game of  gentlemen for a reason other than its apparent want of  adrenaline rush. Golf, is a 
test of  character.

Coming with an inherent etiquette (Yes! The game is guided by a set of  moral values along with 
the officially printed rulebook), the sport demands of  its players the highest levels of  honesty, 
integrity, tolerance, responsibility and regard for environment and fellow beings.
 
Golf  is a unique sport in which the players keep their own scores and call penalties on themselves. 
This requires greatest standard of  sincerity on part of  Golfers to report mistakes even when no 
one’s looking. Also, players are expected to repair turf  and ball marks on the green, rake bunkers, 
and keep up pace with other players. Calls for some gentleman ship indeed! 

In a remarkable resemblance, Central Depository Company, with its unique role as the sole 
securities depository in Pakistan, understands its innate obligation to exercise the most exemplary 
standards of  performance. With our fundamental duty being provisioning of  a safe and secure 
ground for investment, ethical conduct comes as second nature to all under the roof.  

The round played by the leading Capital Market infrastructure institution of  Pakistan, therefore, 

exhibits a legacy of  uprightness. 

THE TEE OFF

Let’s get the game rolling.

The action began in 1993 when CDC was established to propel Pakistan’s Capital Market towards 

automation. The aim was to do away with manual practices and ensure greater security of  investors’ assets. 

The physical share certificates issued and used for trading were to be replaced by the electronic alternative 

to reduce risks associated with physical securities.

The first stroke played was the launch of  Central Depository System (CDS), an electronic book-entry 

system meant to record and maintain securities and to register the transfer of  securities. CDS completely 

revamped the modus operandi of  the country’s Capital Market with the establishment of  state-of-the-art 

infrastructure. This infrastructure later went on to become the backbone of  the Pakistan Capital Market. 

With this new system, came into play greater efficiency and transparency. Reduction in human errors and 

time associated with the processes eventually led to enhanced investor confidence and an exponential 

increase in trade volumes. 

The round had only just begun. 
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DRIVING IT TO THE FAIR-WAY

Trust is fragile. Only with a constant deliverance of  authentic effort does a vulnerable trust evolve 

into durable reliance. 

The next step was to build a repute as a dependable custodian in the market. Following the launch of  CDS, 

investors grew anxious about the level of  control they held over their assets. Moving forward with an aim 

to empower the Investor community, CDC introduced a unique solution in the form of  Investor Account 

Services (IAS) in 1999. 

Investor Account Services enables investors to safely keep their securities directly with CDC. This service 

offered retail investors direct access to their investment portfolio. With greater control, came greater trust 

by investors in the aspirations of  the Company. Today with over 50,000 Investor Accounts, we feel 

confident about our role as a market-oriented enterprise. 

Furthermore, over the years CDC has made continuous efforts to reduce the risks involved in the workings 

of  the Pakistan Capital Market. These efforts took a focused approach when CDC took initiatives to give 

more control, command and access to investors on their investment portfolios and account related 

information. 

CDC Access was launched in line with the objective to provide Investor Account Holders and Sub-Account 

Holders access to their account information on real time basis. The facility initially offered five services – 

Web, IVR, SMS, eAlert and eStatement. The portfolio was later upgraded to include Online Transactions 

Service.
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Online Transactions Service got rid of  the hassle of  paper work and manual efforts associated with 

Portfolio transfers. It empowered Investor Account Holders to initiate transfers directly through the 24/7 

CDC Access Online Web Portal. 

Direct Settlement Service (DSS) was introduced last year in a bid to enhance investor protection. This 

web-based service offered investors a risk-free option of  keeping their cash in IAS accounts along with their 

securities. With Brokers only executing trades, CDC takes up the responsibility of  settling transactions 

(both in cash and securities) of  the subscribers through IAS accounts. Also this service minimizes investors’ 

need of  a sub-account with Broker and allows investors to maintain both trade and custody of  their 

portfolio through just one IAS account. Furthermore, investors can direct queries and complaints to CDC’s 

dedicated Customer Support staff  through a call center.

 

MANEUVERING THROUGH VARYING COURSE

A widespread course means diverse terrains. Diverse terrains call for distinct actions. Distinct 

actions demand fluid character. 

CDC over the years maintained an open perspective towards adopting novel approaches for growth of  its 

business portfolio. A diversified portfolio brought along the inherent benefits of  risk distribution and 

enhanced stability. This further generated a stimulus for growth in directions distinct from the core business. 
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One of  the earliest endeavors in line was the inception of  Trustee and Custodial Services (T&C). Starting 

off  in 2002, it took just over a decade for the service to bag a massive more than 95% of  the market share 

of  the Mutual Funds Industry. The winning strategy was to couple client’s trust with the best practices and 

technology. The electronic Fund Management System (FMS) thus employed for settlement of  transactions 

brings all the stakeholders on the same platform, ensuring optimum efficiency and productivity.

Advancing forward with the spirit, CDC launched its Share Registrar Services in 2008. This time catering 

to the needs of  Issuers and their shareholders, the service offered maintenance, registration, verification of  

shares and direct customer dealing solutions to the Issuer companies. With over 125 companies on board, 

CDC is among the top three service providers in the market. This diverse portfolio includes prominent and 

established organizations from the cement, energy, banking, insurance, steel, pharmaceutical, aviation, 

financial, oil, gas, textile and government sectors.  

Venturing further afield, ITMinds Limited (a subsidiary of  CDC) came up with its Back Office Accounting 

Services (BOAS). With BOAS, ITMinds offered its expertise to companies across Pakistan through services 

that include Investment Settlement, Unit Management, NAV Calculations, Financial Reporting, IT 

Management and Business Continuity Planning. 

PITCHING THE WAY FORWARD

The game can only be played if  you keep moving.  

While exploring new horizons to better contribute to the growth of  country’s economy, CDC decided to 

develop solutions for the Insurance sector. In 2013, a Centralized Information Sharing Solution for 

Insurance Industry (CISSII) was initiated. As the name suggests, this new product aimed at facilitating cross 

flow of  information between insurance companies, which up till now were functioning in isolation. 
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In April 2014, after thorough analysis by the industry players, all leading life insurance companies joined 

in. This central database is the first step towards establishing an Insurance Repository in line with 

international practices. Once again guided by its inherent values of  transparency and integrity, CDC’s 

vision is dematerialization of  insurance records to ensure greater efficiency and security in service.  

STRIKING THROUGH THE ROUGH

 As they say, don’t limit your challenges; challenge your limit.  

As a national securities depository and custodian of  over trillion worth of  assets, risk management is our 

top most priority. Keeping in mind that each diversification of  business brings in new threats, and to ensure 

protection of  investor and clients’ interest, CDC has devoted continuous effort to adopt elaborate and 

multifaceted policies to mitigate associated risks. To curtail threat of  unauthorized access to its systems, 

CDC has a fully functional Enterprise Security Unit since 2001. It regularly conducts risk assessment of  

cyber security protocols, carries out internal and external audits and takes meaningful steps to make the 

entire infrastructure error free. 

The information flowing through these systems is paramount, therefore information security holds 

immense importance in CDC’s business model. To achieve the objective, an internationally approved 

Information Security Management System (ISMS) has been adapted by the Company. In 2001 this system 

was awarded the ISO 27001:2005 certification by the United Kingdom Accreditation Service and last year 

embracing the idea of  continuous improvement, CDC went through a great deal of  efforts to achieve the 

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 by SGS Pakistan.
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Likewise, continuity of  business activities is equally important for protection of  sensitive information of  the 

stakeholders. CDC is among the few local organizations and international depositories to hold BCP-BS 

25999 certification for its Business Continuity Planning (BCP). The core idea behind BCP is to plan ahead 

of  a disaster and make relevant arrangements to ensure continuity of  critical functions of  the company. 

PACING UP THE SWING

Greatness is won with effort. 

Aspiring for dynamic growth, CDC fully acknowledges the learning potential that comes with reaching out 

to the global community. Over the years, CDC has entered into various cross-border collaborations with 

international depositories resulting in exchange of  information regarding technological solutions, 

operational procedures, product development and infrastructure enhancement. 

In 2013, CDC as an active member of  Asia-Pacific Central Securities Depository Group (ACG) has been 

elected as the ACG Secretariat for a 3-year term of  2014-16. ACG is a regional platform facilitating 

exchange of  information and assistance among 34 depositories and clearing companies from 23 member 

countries.  

As ACG Secretariat, CDC also represents Asia on the World Forum of  CSDs (WFC), a body of  five 

regional CSD associations -Asia-Pacific, the Americas, Eurasia, Africa & the Middle East, and Europe. 
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READING THE GREEN

Understand the clues and learn the moves to putt with perfection.

Locally CDC has been working on widening the ambit of  Pakistan’s Capital Market through its investor 

cultivation activities. Since inception, CDC has continued to enlighten current investors about capital 

market operations, their rights, and the risks and opportunities associated with the market. Our 

contribution continued on the investor awareness, education and cultivation front as well. We have been 

tapping in the potential investors, educating them about available investment avenues and motivating them 

towards taking the first step. These activities aim at growth of  Capital Market to ensure economic 

development of  the country.   

Soundness of  ways promises excellence, both for golfers and CDC. An overall growth of  service 

offerings and business portfolio over the years, is a testimony to the Company’s principled character. 

With a firm devotion to offer the best, CDC will continue to play its rounds in a gentlemanly 

manner. 
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NOTICE OF 24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
will be held on Thursday, September 22, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. at its registered office situated at  CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, 
S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact the following business

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive and adopt the annual audited standalone and consolidated Accounts of the Company for the year ended   
June 30, 2016, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon and Statement of Compliance with the Code 
of Corporate Governance.

2. To consider and declare cash dividend of Re. 0.3077 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 3.077% and bonus shares 
 @ 53.846% to the shareholders as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year 
 ended June 30, 2016.
 
3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2017 and fix their remuneration.

Notes:

1. A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such Corporation or 
such other Company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or 
any other person to act as its authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the 
person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other 
Company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and 
vote instead of him / her. 

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly 
authorised in writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned 
on the form.

5. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

Shariq Jafrani
CFO & Company Secretary  

Karachi, Dated: Thursday, September 01, 2016
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6. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting if requested.

7. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or 
a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not 
less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

8. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on September 21, 2016 and September 22, 2016. Transfer 
received in order at the Registered Office of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main 
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s Articles of 
Association, for any corporate entitlements approved by the members.Faisal, Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be 
treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s Articles of Association, for any corporate entitlements approved by the 
members.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF 
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
For the year ended June 30, 2016 

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance as contained in the Listing 
Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, 
whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (“the Company”), although not being a listed company, has voluntarily adopted the best 
practices of Corporate Governance, however, with the promulgation of Central Depositories (Licensing & Operations) 
Regulations, 2016, the Company is required to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance for listed companies.  

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner: 

1. The Company encourages representation of non-executive directors on its Board of Directors. The Board consists of 
twelve (12) directors comprising of ten (10) non-executive directors representing respective institutional 
shareholders, a nominee director of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as per Articles of Association 
and the Chief Executive Officer by virtue of position as per statute. 

2. The directors have voluntarily confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).  

3. All the resident directors of the Company have declared that they are registered taxpayers and that none of them 
has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a Development Financial Institution,  a Non Banking 
Financial Institution or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock  
exchange.

  
4. Casual vacancies occurred in the Board during the year were filled up by the directors in accordance with the 

Company’s Articles of  Association.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it  throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision and a mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. A  complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved 
or amended has been  maintained.  A mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and the Board has taken decisions on material transactions,  
 including  appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief  
 Executive Officer and fees  paid to non-executive directors for attending the Board meetings. 

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
theBoard for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board  meetings, 
along with agenda and working  papers, were circulated at least seven days before each meeting. The minutes of the 
meetings were appropriately recorded and  circulated.

9. The directors have been provided with copies of the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association and the 
Code of  Corporate Governance and they are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities. The Company is 
committed to arrange  orientation course and training programs for its directors to apprise them of their duties and 
responsibilities. Training programs  for two directors were arranged during the year. 
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Husain Lawai
Chairman

Karachi, dated:  Wednesday, August 31, 2016

10. The terms of appointment including remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Company Secretary and 
Chief Internal  Auditor were approved by the Board.

11. The directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully 
describes  significant matters required to be disclosed. 

12. The CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements of the Company before approval by the Board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than holding 
qualification shares of  the Company as required under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has formed Board Audit Committee (“BAC”), comprising of five non-executive directors and the Chairman 
of BAC is a  non-executive director.  

16. The meetings of the BAC were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and annual financial 
results of the  Company and as required by the Code. The Terms of Reference of the BAC have been determined by 
the Board and advised to the BAC for compliance.

17. The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of six members, of whom five are 
non-executive directors  and the chairman of the Committee is a non-executive director.

18. The Company has an effective internal audit function.

19. The Statutory Auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control  review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any partner of the 
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are 
in compliance with International Federation  of Accountants (“IFAC”) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IFAC  guidelines in this regard. 

21. We confirm that all material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.  

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

200

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Statement) prepared by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited (the Company) to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) as mandated 
under the Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement reflects the status of the 
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with 
the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various 
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider 
whether the Board’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness 
of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between 
transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are 
not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are 
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by 
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to 
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement does not 
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Karachi 
Date: August 31, 2016

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants   
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb

-Sd-
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the 
Company) as at June 30, 2016 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the 
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare 
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies  
Ordinance, 1984;

in our opinion:

the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes 
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement  with 
the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance 
with the objects of the Company;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in 
equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner  so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2016 and of the profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

(a)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(c)

(d)

Karachi 
Date: August 31, 2016

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants   
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb

-Sd-
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UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorised share capital 
   150,000,000 (2015: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500,000,000  750,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
   65,000,000 (2015: 65,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

  

5  650,000,000  650,000,000

Reserve fund

Reserves

  100,000,000  100,000,000

 1,613,024,405

1,717,959,213

 1,356,270,256

 1,481,315,942

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net  4,934,808  25,045,686

Total shareholders’ equity  2,367,959,213  2,131,315,942

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net 6  465,862,802  475,083,518

Non-current liabilities

Long term deposits 7  116,225,000  113,812,500

Deferred taxation - net 8  66,710,364  83,873,751

Total non-current liabilities  182,935,364  197,686,251

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9  357,038,351  307,517,755 

Short term deposits 10  660,498  734,998 

Unearned fee 11  39,767,248  46,819,007 

Taxation - net 12  30,075,712  25,623,679 

Total current liabilities  427,541,809  380,695,439 

Total liabilities  610,477,173  578,381,690 

13Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities  3,444,299,188  3,184,781,150

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Property and equipment 14.1  887,706,254  877,812,435 

Intangibles 14.2  100,306,953  93,171,608 

 988,013,207  970,984,043 

Long term investments 15  100,000,000  100,000,000 

Long term loans 16  37,207,757  10,961,140 

Long term deposits and prepayments 17  11,820,837  6,707,800 

Total non-current assets  1,137,041,801  1,088,652,983 

Current assets

Trade debts - net 18  241,224,441  168,422,573 

Loans and advances 19  8,826,458  5,182,626 

Prepayments  25,457,385  27,095,183 

Mark-up accrued 20  40,635,772  41,887,810 

Other receivables 21  7,047,071  1,378,870 

Short term investments 22  1,917,633,419  1,811,501,834 

Cash and bank balances

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

23  66,432,841  40,659,271 

Total current assets  2,307,257,387  2,096,128,167 

Total assets  3,444,299,188  3,184,781,150 
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Operating income - net 24  1,492,076,193  1,365,339,166

Operating and administrative expenses 25  (935,252,690)  (837,590,135)

 556,823,503  527,749,031

Other income 26  166,867,823  168,720,651

Other operating expenses 27  (18,088,643)  (30,987,704)

Financial charges 28  (145,622)  (142,191) 

 148,633,558   137,590,756 

 705,457,061  665,339,787

Income tax expense 29  (246,000,000)  (233,600,000)

 459,457,061  431,739,787

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  7.07  6.6430

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 459,457,061  431,739,787 

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

 subsequently   

Unrealised (loss)/gain on remeasurement of available for sale investments  (29,001,383)  (37,381,621)

Gain realised on disposal of investments  (1,104,774) -

Impact of deferred tax  9,995,279  (12,335,935)

 (20,110,878)  25,045,686 

 (3,334,000)    (9,694,712) 

Impact of current tax  1,066,880  3,200,000

Impact of deferred tax    -  (7,178,592)

 (2,267,120)  (13,673,304)

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income  (22,377,998)   11,372,382 

Total comprehensive income for the year  437,079,063   443,112,169 

Surplus arising on revaluation of property and equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in a separate account below equity.
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Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 705,457,061  665,339,787
Adjustments

14.1.1  93,316,555  82,396,483 Depreciation on property and equipment

Profit before Income tax

  14.2.1  29,168,513  21,922,242 Amortization of intangibles

26  (1,654,396)  (3,300,098)Gain on disposal of property and equipment

26  (3,447,609)  (5,616,888)

   -  (63,810,190)Return on investments - held to maturity

28  145,622  142,191 Financial charges

32.3  29,000,000  27,198,505 

 146,528,685  58,932,245 

 851,985,746  724,272,032 

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Working capital changes

Trade debts - net  (72,801,868)  (12,722,713)

Loans and advances  (3,643,832)  762,595 

Prepayments  1,637,798  (5,162,269)

Other receivables  (5,668,198)  11,942,765 

 (80,476,100)  (5,179,622)

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and payables  44,568,595  66,859,567 

Short term deposits  (74,500)  (625,000)

Unearned fees  (7,051,759)  5,666,882 

 37,442,336  71,901,449 

(Increase) / decrease of loans (assets)  (26,246,617)  1,970,297 

(Increase) / decrease of deposits and prepayments (assets)  (5,113,037)  2,074,487 

Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)  2,412,500  2,262,500 

 (28,947,154)  6,307,284 

Cash generated from operations  780,004,827  797,301,143 

32.2  (27,382,000)  (24,929,343)

Financial charges paid  (145,622)  (142,191)

Income tax paid  (246,055,691)  (212,884,653)

 (273,583,313)  (237,956,187)

Net cash from operating activities  506,421,514  559,344,956 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure incurred  (142,648,505)  (107,919,961)

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  4,788,670  6,385,389 

Mark-up accrued  4,699,633  57,457,926 

Investments - net  (30,106,157)  578,339,396 

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities  (163,266,359)  534,262,750 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid  (211,250,000)  (195,000,000)

 (211,250,000)  (195,000,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  131,905,155  898,607,706 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 31  1,852,161,105  953,553,399 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31  1,984,066,260  1,852,161,105 

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

89



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

Issued, subscribed 
and paid-up share 

capital

* Reserve 
fund

 Unappropriated Surplus on 
revaluation of  

Available for sale 
investments-net

 Total 
 shareholders’ 

 equity

Note -------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at July 1, 2014  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,122,548,586 -  1,872,548,586 

Total comprehensive income  

   -    -  431,739,787 -  431,739,787 

 -  Other comprehensive income    -    -  (13,673,304) 25,045,686  11,372,382 

   -    -  418,066,483 25,045,686  443,112,169 

assets on account of incremental

assets on account of incremental

depreciation - net of deferred tax 6 - -  10,655,187   -  10,655,187

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity  

Final dividend paid @ 30% ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share)   -   -  (195,000,000)   -  (195,000,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2015  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,356,270,256  25,045,686  2,131,315,942

Balance as at July 1, 2015  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,356,270,256  25,045,686  2,131,315,942

Total comprehensive income 

     -    -  459,457,061    -  459,457,061 

  -  Other comprehensive income    -    -  (2,267,132)  (20,110,878)  (22,378,010)

   -    -  457,189,929  (20,110,878)  437,079,051 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed

incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax 6    -    -  10,814,220   -  10,814,220

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity

Final dividend paid @ 32.5% ( i.e. Rs. 3.25 per share )   -   -  (211,250,000)   -  (211,250,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2016  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,613,024,405  4,934,808  2,367,959,213

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1  LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

        

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public Company with its liability limited by shares on 

January 21, 1993 and received certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activities of the Company are 

to act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered office of the Company 

is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.

The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance Companies 

and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodialship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations.

The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and is also managing Centralized 

Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII). 

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries with names and styles of ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee Company Limited.

2  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

         

2.1  Statement of compliance

        

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as  

applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies  Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the 

Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan  (SECP) differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail. 

These unconsolidated financial statements comprise unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated 

statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with 

the notes forming part thereof.

 

2.2  Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards 

2.2.1  Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the company and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective 

during the current year.

Standard, amendments and interpretation       Effective Date

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements       January 1, 2015

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements         January 1, 2015

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in other Entities       January 1, 2015

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement        January 1, 2015

IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements        January 1, 2015 

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended 

June 30, 2015 and 2016.

        

91



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

2.2.2  Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant     

   

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 1, 

2015 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations and are therefore not 

presented here.

2.2.3  Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the    

  Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 

against the respective standard or interpretation.

Standard, amendments and interpretation        Effective Date

 

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation  of Financial Statements)    January 1, 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 ans IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the Consolidation Exception    January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12  and IAS 28)        

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture  January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)        

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle        January 1, 2016

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation    January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)        January 1, 2017  

IAS 12 - Recognition of deferred tax assets for Unrealized  Losses      January 1, 2017  

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the 

financial statements of the Company.        

2.2.4  Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange    

  Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the  

purpose of applicability in Pakistan.         

            IASB effective date  

Standard or Interpretation        (Annual periods  beginning on or after) 

         

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (2014)        January 1, 2018  

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts        January 1, 2016  

IFRS 15 -  Revenue from Contracts with Customers      January 1, 2018  

IFRS 16 -  Leases          January 1, 2019  
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

2.3  Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 

benefit at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments 

at fair value and amortised cost.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.  

               

The preparation of  unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that 

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher 

degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements are as 

follows: 

a) Staff retirement benefits        

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets        

c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts        

d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation        

e) Revaluation of land and building        

f) Investments

        

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future 

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have 

material effect on the unconsolidated financial statements.        

2.4  General

        

  The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.        

         

3  PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

        

  The unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and  

methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.    

      

4.1  Staff retirement benefits

        

4.1.1  Defined benefit plan        

The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying 

period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of 

actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or 

credit to  ther comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 32. 

2.3 

2.3.1 

2.3.2 

2.3.3 
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4.1.2  Defined contribution plan        

The Company also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.    

 

Provident fund        

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions  at the rate of 10% of basic salary 

are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees.        

         

Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund        

       

The Company has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014. 

Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.

4.1.3  Compensated absences        

The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on 

cessation of services. Related expected cost there of has been recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements on the basis of best 

management estimates.

4.2  Property and equipment        

Owned        

        

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated 

at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluation has 

been accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as 

a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions during the 

year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.      

  

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.   

     

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and 

improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.       

 

Leased        

        

The Company accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined 

at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are 

allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to 

income applying the same basis as for owned assets.

Capital work-in-progress        

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress 

account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under 

capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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4.2.1  Intangibles

         

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable economic benefit beyond one 

year are recognized as intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line 

method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Company.

Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal.

The amortization period for software is five years.        

         

4.2.2  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 

such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss 

account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 

fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, 

assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which there are generating separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

4.3  Borrowing costs

   

Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly 

attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in the 

period in which they are incurred.

4.4  Investment in subsidiary companies

Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In arriving at the impairment in respect of any 

diminution in the value of these investments, consideration is given only if there is a permanent impairment in the value of these investments. 

4.5  Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 

instrument.

           

Initial recognition        

         

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it, including associated 

transaction costs except that are incurred on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are 

recorded in the profit and loss account. 

Subsequent measurement        

         

The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below:        

         

4.5.1  Financial assets        

         

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories upon initial recognition; namely loans and 

receivables, held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments.        

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial 

recognition these are carried at amortized cost.

Held to maturity

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Company has a positive intent 

and ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.

Available for sale investment

Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, 

are classified as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated 

as available for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the balance sheet at 

fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on revaluation of 'available for sale' 

investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on available 

for sale investment is transferred to profit and loss account. 

Held for trading investments

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as held for 

trading investment. 

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss account. These investments are 

marked to market and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are 

taken to the profit and loss account for the year. 

Impairment of financial assets        

         

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is 

considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows 

of that asset. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

4.5.2  Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subesquently at amortiesd cost using the effective interest method except for those which are designated at fair 

value through profit and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with remeasurement gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. 

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value are reported in profit or loss account are included within 

finance costs or finance income.
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4.5.3  Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. 

Financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the profit and loss account 

immediately.         

4.5.4  Off setting         

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legal right to set-off the 

transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.    

     

4.6  Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.       

     

4.7  Provisions, contingencies and commitments

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

amount of obligation.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as 

contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote.

    

Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements at committed amounts.  

 

4.8  Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services.  

     

4.9  Foreign currency translations        

         

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet 

date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange 

gains or losses are taken to income currently.        

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of 

the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 

the fair value was determined.

4.10  Taxation       

         

4.10.1  Current         

         

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and 

rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

97



4.10.2  Deferred         

         

Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the 

expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized.  

  

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 

enacted. The company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.     

 

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive 

income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.       

    

4.11  Cash and cash equivalent        

         

Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of unconsolidated statement 

of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which are highly liquid and 

maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 

risk of change in value.        

     

4.12  Revenue recognition        

         

Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement in CDS 

on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.   

Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading 

day of the month at the respective Stock Exchange of Pakistan. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.   

Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.       

Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services.        

Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.     

Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to the 

sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.        

  

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise.       

Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis. 

4.13  Interest and Dividends Income        

      

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other those from investments in 

associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.
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4.14  Dividend and Appropriation 

Dividend distribution to the shareholders' of the Company is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the period in 

which such dividends are approved. 

   

4.15  Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL    

5.1 Associated companies held 44,787,600 (2015: 48,037,600) shares in the Company as at year end.

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Number of shares 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 10,000,000    000,000,01  100,000,000  100,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares 55,000,000  55,000,000  550,000,000  550,000,000

 65,000,000  65,000,000 650,000,000 650,000,000

Note

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year 

 

 527,669,153  543,572,417 

- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated profit 
  during the year - net of deferred tax  (10,814,220)  (10,655,187)

 - related deferred tax liability  (5,089,044)  (5,248,077)

 (15,903,264)  (15,903,264)

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year   511,765,889  527,669,153 

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

-   surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year  (52,585,635)  (59,586,249)

-   remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate  1,593,504  1,752,537 

-   incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to profit and loss account 5,089,044 5,248,077

 
Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year 8  (45,903,087)  (52,585,635)

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net    465,862,802  475,083,518

 June 30, 2016

 Rupees

 June 30, 2015

Rupees
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8 DEFERRED TAXATION-NET    

9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   

9.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

9.2 Accumulated compensated absences

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on:

- Provision for doubtful debts  (370,924)  (382,518)

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on: 

- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model over tax written down value of property and equipment  18,837,595  19,334,699 

- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 6  45,903,087  52,585,635 

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments  2,340,606  12,335,935 

 66,710,364  83,873,751

Payable to suppliers  3,682,891  2,304,586 

Accrued expenses  186,335,759  176,578,070 

9.1  69,395,324  61,286,643 

Investor account services - current account  59,204,020  45,670,607 

Workers' Welfare Fund  13,745,902  13,745,902 

ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary    -  558,068 

Others  24,674,455  7,373,879 

 357,038,351  307,517,755 

32.2  36,659,549  31,707,535 

Accumulated Compensated absences 9.2  32,735,775  29,579,108 

 69,395,324  61,286,643 

Opening balance  29,579,108  24,294,296 

Provision for the year  5,921,910  8,661,033 

Payments made during the year  (2,765,243)  (3,376,221)

Closing balance  32,735,775  29,579,108 
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7.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the CDS. 

According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the Company for any 

purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

 

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS  

Due to: 

-  Participants  43,050,000  43,150,000 

-  Institutions  28,125,000  27,325,000 

-  Pledgees  1,500,000  1,200,000 

-  Issuers  43,550,000  42,137,500 

 116,225,000  113,812,500 
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12.1 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2008 

creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million. The Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue 

Appeals [CIR(A)] which was decided vide order dated August 28, 2014 against the Company. Presently, the appeal is pending before the Appellate 

Tribunal Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Management, on the basis of opinion from tax advisor, is of the view that the appeal would eventually 

be decided in the Company’s favour.

     

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

  

13.1 Contingencies

Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 upto June 2013 with regards to chargeability of 

Sindh Sales Tax amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Company were falling under the 

ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC).

Currently the Company has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh against the said order and the case is pending in Appellate Tribunal. The 

management on the basis of clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and opinions from advisors believes that the services 

rendered by the Company does not fall under the ambit of NBFC and the case will have favorable outcome and thus no provision has been recorded 

in the financial statements.

13.2 Commitments

11 UNEARNED FEE

12 TAXATION - NET  

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Annual fee

 2,173,096  2,823,937 - Issuers

 12,485,889  18,924,732 - Investor Account Services (IAS)

 4,560,004  4,560,004 - Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants

 22,750  20,125 Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee

 20,525,509  20,490,209 Sub account maintenance fee

 39,767,248  46,819,007 

Provision for taxation - net   30,075,712  25,623,679
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10 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Due to: 

-  Participants  361,637  261,137 

-  Institutions  298,861  473,861 

 660,498  734,998 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 10,987,909  21,116,452 
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14.1.1  Operating assets

14 FIXED ASSETS

14.1 Property and Equipment Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Operating assets 14.1.1  884,774,550  870,753,447 
Capital work-in-progress 14.1.4  2,931,704  7,058,988 

 887,706,254  877,812,435 

OWNED

Year ended June 30, 2016 Leasehold land Building and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Computer 
equipment

 Total Operating 
Assets 

OWNED

Leasehold land Building and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Computer 
equipment

 Total Operating 
Assets 

Net book value at the beginning of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  35,568,902  22,489,080  72,863,145 870,753,447
Additions    -  3,029,128  13,354,098  23,766,620  18,751,904  51,570,183 110,471,933

Disposals 
Cost    -    -  (2,024,823)  (10,199,608)  (4,124,256)  (20,391,941) (36,740,628)
Accumulated depreciation    -    -  2,024,064  7,373,219  3,890,804  20,374,266 33,662,353

   -    -  (759)  (2,826,389)  (233,452)  (17,675)  (3,078,275)
Transfers

Cost    -    -    -    -  (28,000)    -    (28,000) 
Accumulated depreciation    -    -    -    -  (27,999)    -    (27,999) 

   -    -  (55,999)    -    (55,999) 
Depreciation charge for the year    -  (26,533,633)  (5,503,491)  (16,033,125)  (8,558,814)  (36,687,494)  (93,316,557)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  269,182,466  27,218,197  40,476,008  32,392,719  87,728,160  884,774,550

As at June 30, 2016

Cost / revalued amount  427,777,000  422,144,687  166,654,533  82,427,957  187,527,444  415,238,053 1,701,769,674
Accumulated depreciation    -  (152,962,221)  (139,436,336)  (41,951,949)  (155,134,725)  (327,509,894) (816,995,125)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  269,182,466  27,218,197  40,476,008  32,392,719  87,728,160 884,447,550

Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

Year ended June 30, 2015

Net book value at the beginning of the year  427,777,000  319,215,951  6,640,483  42,506,062  23,603,774  74,527,538  894,270,808 
Additions    -    -  16,197,802  10,265,833  6,637,691  28,863,087  61,964,413 

Disposals 
Cost    -  (46,249)  (11,786,499)  (9,794,295)  (5,783,035)  (28,933,793)  (56,343,871)
Accumulated depreciation    -  24,266  11,786,391  8,866,222  5,693,103  28,916,539  55,286,521 

   -  (21,983)  (108)  (928,073)  (89,932)  (17,254)  (1,057,350)
Transfers

Cost    -    -    -  (4,905,750)  (64,249)    -  (4,969,999)
Accumulated depreciation    -    -    -  2,917,429  24,629    -  2,942,058 

   -  (1,988,321)  (39,620)    -  (2,027,941)

Depreciation charge for the year    -  (26,506,997)  (3,469,828)  (14,286,599)  (7,622,833)  (30,510,226)  (82,396,483)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  35,568,902  22,489,080  72,863,145  870,753,447 

As at June 30, 2015

Cost / revalued amount  427,777,000  419,115,559  155,325,258  68,860,945  172,927,796  384,059,811  1,628,066,369 
Accumulated depreciation    -  (126,428,588)  (135,956,909)  (33,292,043)  (150,438,716)  (311,196,666)  (757,312,922)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  35,568,902  22,489,080  72,863,145  870,753,447 

Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%
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 June 30, 2016

Cost

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Net Book value under cost model

Rupees

Land- lease hold

Building

59,458,250 59,458,250

215,084,492 212,055,364

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

59,458,250 59,458,250

125,735,327 133,336,568

14.1.4  Capital work in progress  

14.2  Intangibles

14.2.1  Softwares 

14.2.2  Softwares under implementation

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Balance at the beginning of the year  7,058,988  4,836,995 

Additions
 9,977,652  14,375,372 

-  Building  7,370,460    - 
 64,724,417  38,263,201 

-  Vehicles  24,272,120  11,547,833 
 106,344,649  64,186,406 
 113,403,637  69,023,401 

Transferred to operating assets 14.1.1  (110,471,933)  (61,964,413)
Balance at the end of the year  2,931,704  7,058,988

Softwares 14.2.1  94,175,563  86,858,561
Softwares under implementation 14.2.2  6,131,390  6,313,047

 100,306,953  93,171,608

For the year ended June 30,
 86,858,561  64,368,802 Net book value at the beginning of the year
 36,485,515  44,412,001 Additions

25  (29,168,513)  (21,922,242)Amortization charge for the year

 94,175,563  86,858,561Net book value at the end of the year

As at June 30,
 329,173,451  292,687,936 Cost

 (234,997,888)  (205,829,375)Accumulated amortization
 94,175,563  86,858,561Net book value at the end of the year

20% 20%Amortization rate

Balance at the beginning of the year  6,313,047  6,991,493 
Additions  36,303,858  43,733,555 

 42,616,905  50,725,048 
Transferred to softwares 14.2.1  (36,485,515)  (44,412,001)
Balance at the end of the year  6,131,390  6,313,047 

14.1.2  Land - Lease hold and building have been revalued on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer on the basis of professional assessments of the  

  market values.

14.1.3  Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and net book values would have been as follows:
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15 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

  Reconciliation of loan to executives   

14.3  Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above:

15.1 This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiaries for IT services and Business process outsourcing (BPO) office under the name of ITMinds 

Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2015: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each and for trustee and custodial services under the name of CDC Trustee 

Company Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2015: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each.

16  LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - secured

- Housing loans 16.1  30,199,678  4,211,143 

- Car loans 16.2  13,592,507  10,619,712 

 43,792,185  14,830,855 

- Transferred to current maturity

Loan outstanding for period:

19  (6,584,428)  (3,869,715)

 37,207,757  10,961,140 

Balance at beginning of the  year  8,684,977  9,700,760 

Add: Disbursement/ addition during  the year  30,271,844  1,456,700 

 38,956,821  11,157,460 

less: Recovered during the year

Balance at the end of the year

 (5,358,123)  (2,472,483)

 33,598,698  8,684,977 

Particular of Assets
Cost Accumulated 

depreciation Written Down 
Value

Sale
proceeds 

Gain / (loss)
on disposal

Particulars of buyer

--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------

iPhone 5s 65,000 11,917 53,083 27,000 (26,083) Insurance Claim

Toyota Corolla XLI 1,537,500 871,250 666,250 1.205,000 538,750 Sold to employee
(Shah Muhammad Ishaq)

Toyota Corolla XLI 1,627,500 135,625 1,491,875 1,600,000 108,125 Insurance Claim

Honda City 1,466,000 830,733 635,267 147,900 (487,367) Sold to employee 
(Tariq Abdul Aziz)

Total 4,696,000 1,849,525 2,846,475 2,979,900 133,425

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Investment in related parties

Investment in subsidiaries - at cost

- ITMinds Limited  50,000,000  50,000,000 

- CDC Trustee Company Limited  50,000,000  50,000,000 

15.1  100,000,000  100,000,000 

- More than one year but less than three years 11,847,023 6,625,074 

- More than three years  25,360,734 4,336,066 

37,207,757 10,961,140



Interest ranging from 3% to 5% per annum on monthly outstanding balance  is recovered on house loans and taken to profit and loss account. 

Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years.

Interest at 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to profit and loss account currently. However, no 

interest is recovered from employees who surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for car loan is five years. 

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 41.912 million (2015: Rs. 17.100 million). 

17  LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

18.1  The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:

18  TRADE DEBTS - NET 

Note

18.1

18.2

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Deposits 

 - Utilities  4,884,018  4,868,018 

 - Rented premises  1,872,000  1,247,000 

 - Clubs membership    -  50,000 

 6,756,018  6,165,018 

Prepayments  5,064,819  542,782 

 11,820,837  6,707,800 

Considered good:

 - secured  166,437,078  119,901,799 

 - unsecured  74,787,363  48,520,774 

Considered doubtful, unsecured

 241,224,441  168,422,573 

 1,159,136  1,159,136 

Provision for impairment

 242,383,577  169,581,709 

 (1,159,136)  (1,159,136)

 241,224,441  168,422,573 

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Within 45 days

46 to 90

over 91 days 

 212,078,873 -  212,078,873 158,732,905     -   158,732,905

29,145,568 - 29,145,568 9,689,668 - 9,689,668

1,159,136 1,159,136 - 1,159,136 1,159,136 -

Total 242,383,577 1,159,136 241,224,441 169,581,709 168,422,5731,159,136

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

105

16.1

16.2

16.3



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Within 45 days

46 to 90

over 91 days 

18.2 The Company reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently 

opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to Rs. 

0.4 million (2015: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2015: 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end.

18.3 Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 14.6 million (2015: Rs. 7.3 million).

18.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows: 

18.4  The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the year  

  was Rs. 17.1 million (2015: Rs. 10.6 million). 

19  LOANS AND ADVANCES

19.1  All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

20  MARK-UP ACCRUED

21  OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net

9,400,965 - 9,400,965 6,121,821     -   6,121,821

5,223,018 - 5,223,018 1,155,698 - 1,155,698

- - - - - -

Total 14,623,983 - -14,623,983 7,277,519 7,277,519

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Current maturity of long term loans 16  6,584,428  3,869,715 

Advance to employee  1,583,543  916,220 

Advance for expenses  658,487  396,691 

 2,242,030  1,312,911 

 8,826,458  5,182,626 

Mark-up accrued on Bank deposits    -  242,666 

Mark-up accrued on PIBs 22.4  40,635,772  41,645,144 

 40,635,772  41,887,810 

From related parties - ITMinds Limited - (Subsidiary)  2,813,863    - 

From other parties  4,233,208  1,378,870 

 7,047,071  1,378,870 
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21.1  All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.

22  SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS  

This represents investment in fixed Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 6.40% to 7.50% per annum (2015: 7.25% to  

9.95% per annum).      

   

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.99% to 8.97% per annum (2015: 6.72% to 9.97% per 

annum).       

       

This represents investment in open ended mutual fund.       

       

The Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using  the effective interest method. The  

effective interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2015: 7.89% to 12.25%) per annum. 

23  CASH AND BANK BALANCES      

23.1  The rate of profit varies from 5.25% to 6.40% (2015: 6.00% to 8.35%) per annum.    

23.2  Bank balances include Rs. 7.169 million (2015: Rs. 3.840 million) held with related parties.  

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Held-to-maturity investments-

Unquoted debt securities 

-  Treasury Bills 22.2 & 31    -  193,429,403 

Held for trading investments 22.3 & 31    -  300,103,519 

Available for sale investments

22.1 & 31  382,840,548  227,036,816 

-  Treasury Bills 22.2 & 31  685,881,550  147,562,259 

-  Pakistan Investment Bonds 22.4 & 31  848,911,321  943,369,837 

 1,917,633,419  1,811,501,834 

Bank balances

-  in saving accounts 23.1  61,199,437  38,291,843 

-  in current accounts  5,095,085  2,235,824 

Cash in hand  138,319  131,604 

 66,432,841  40,659,271 
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24  OPERATING INCOME - NET

24.1  Depository services - net 

24.1.1  Depository services - net 

24.1.2  Transaction fee - net 

24.1.3  Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2015: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee which is  

  borne by the Company.

24.2  Trusteeship and custodial services - net 

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Depository services - net 24.1  995,516,167  933,982,481 

Trusteeship and custodial services - net 24.2  462,115,721  403,423,649 

Share Registrar Services - net 24.3  39,843,103  33,700,529 

Miscellaneous Income - net 24.4  5,001,487  3,948,825 

 1,502,476,478  1,375,055,484 

SECP supervision fee 24.5  (10,400,285)  (9,716,318)

 1,492,076,193  1,365,339,166 

Depository Services  1,137,328,269  933,982,481

-Less: Sales Tax

24.1.1

 (141,812,102)

 995,516,167  933,982,481 

Transaction fee 24.1.2  145,031,594  153,841,158 

Custody fee  378,103,369  344,841,394 

Sub account maintenance fee  58,505,450  54,064,698 

CDS connection fee  28,025,500  27,452,000 

Securities induction fee  226,681,017  211,555,272 

Annual fee  133,373,920  129,833,425 

Cancellation fee  18,180,331  7,431,264 

Withdrawal fee  5,090,186  2,528,470 

RSA service charges  2,524,800  2,434,800 

 995,516,167  933,982,481 

Transaction fee  175,390,453  185,362,053

Less: SECP levy 24.1.3  (30,358,859)  (31,520,895)

 145,031,594  153,841,158

Trusteeship and custodial businesses  551,429,835  425,355,542 

Less: SECP levy 24.2.1  (23,068,345)  (21,931,893)

Less: Sales Tax  (66,245,769)    - 

 462,115,721  403,423,649 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016



109

24.2.1  SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2015: 0.005%) of average annual assets of Open End Scheme or Closed End Scheme under its trusteeship.

24.3  Share Registrar Services - net

24.5  SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2015: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee.

25  OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

24.4  Miscellaneous Income - net 

Share registrar services  46,258,011  33,700,529 

Less: Sales Tax  (6,414,908)    - 

 39,843,103  33,700,529 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Miscellaneous Income  5,695,029  3,948,825 

Less: Sales Tax  (693,542)    - 

 5,001,487  3,948,825 

25.1 & 25.2  526,357,157  472,548,040 

Travelling and conveyance  8,299,406  7,400,515 

Vehicle running and maintenance  12,663,319  12,667,540 

Training and development  13,861,672  3,870,719 

Communication  10,432,866  10,867,166 

Printing and stationery  9,368,498  8,484,969 

Rent, rates and taxes  16,476,578  14,322,056 

Insurance  23,413,690  22,263,691 

Repairs and maintenance  67,302,453  63,897,953 

Legal and professional charges  18,058,001  18,013,474 

Fee and subscription  6,817,220  3,822,844 

Advertisement and publicity  21,591,056  17,819,899 

 4,329,668  3,678,110 

Meeting expenses  7,448,577  6,405,884 

Wide-area-network line rent  9,775,331  8,989,077 

Auditors' remuneration 25.3  2,693,579  2,288,057 

Depreciation 14.1.1  93,316,555  82,396,483 

Amortization 14.2.1  29,168,513  21,922,242 

Fuel and electricity  31,445,079  35,285,311 

Security services  9,891,230  9,080,675 

Cafeteria  7,512,561  6,673,609 

Miscellaneous  5,029,681  4,891,821 

 935,252,690  837,590,135 
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25.2  Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives:     

25.1  Salaries and other benefits include:  

25.2.1  The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits  

  in accordance with the terms of employment.

25.2.2  The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 6,240,000 (2015: Rs. 5,100,000).

25.3  Auditors' remuneration      

25.4  Employees Provident Fund      

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

- Compensated absences 9.2  5,921,910  8,661,033 

32.3  29,000,000  27,198,505 

 4,003,427  1,771,835 

- Contribution to provident fund  21,361,157  17,959,458 

 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

CEO Executives CEO Executives

Managerial Remuneration 25,571,481 177,334,934 22,236,071 168,494,074

Bonus 20,367,000 55,589,000 19,208,600 50,366,501

Gratuity 2,212,916 14,015,102 1,924,272 13,550,136

Provident fund

Defined contribution gratuity fund

Number of person

1,475,278 9.984,597 1,282,850 9,176,146

- 961,794 - 306,940

49,626,675 257,885,427 44,651,793 241,893,797

1 88 1 87

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Audit fees  1,580,306  1,436,643

Half year review  434,545  391,314 

Others  678,728  460,100 

 2,693,579  2,288,057 

- Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)  60,838,746  57,124,619 

- Number of members 396  325 

- Cost of investments made (Rupees)  46,453,592  46,836,191 

- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund 76% 82%

- Fair value of investments (Rupees)  48,512,183  49,110,460 

--------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------
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These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2016. The audited financial statements of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. 

Investments out of Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and the 

rules formulated for this purpose.

26  OTHER INCOME 

27.1  Donation amounting to Rs. 11.25 million (2015: 3.75 million)  have been made to a donee in which a director has common directorship. No other  

  director and their spouses had any interest in any other donees during the year.        

    

28  FINANCIAL CHARGES  

29.1  The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2015 except as disclosed in note 12.1. 

29  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

27  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Note

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 - Return on bank deposits  3,447,609  5,616,888 

 - Interest on loans to employees  588,602  127,696 

 - Return on investments - held to maturity    -  105,212,348 

 - Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments    -  25,542,724 

 - Realized gain on held-for-trading investments  5,441,034    - 

 - Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment  150,498,699  26,769,858 

 159,975,944  163,269,514 

 - Gain on disposal of property and equipment  1,654,396  3,300,098 

 2,614,100  1,919,304 

 - Others  2,623,383  231,735 

 6,891,879  5,451,137 

 166,867,823  168,720,651 

Donations 27.1  18,088,643  17,408,187 

Workers welfare fund    -  13,579,517 

 18,088,643  30,987,704 

Bank charges  145,622  142,191 

Current  251,574,556  239,200,000 

Deferred  (5,574,556)  (5,600,000)

 246,000,000  233,600,000 
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29.2  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

30  EARNINGS PER SHARE

30.1  Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 

30.2  Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted

  Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2016  

  and 2015 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable. 

31  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   

32  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

  The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the  

  gratuity fund. The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial  

  assumptions used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2016 are as follows:       

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 705,457,061  665,339,787 

Enacted tax rate 32% 33%

Tax charge at enacted rate  225,746,260  219,562,130 

 (380,872)  (5,929,099)

 21,500,000  20,500,000 Super tax

 (865,388)  (533,031)Others

 246,000,000  233,600,000 

 459,457,061  431,739,787 

 Number of shares 

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares  65,000,000  65,000,000 

Rupees Rupees

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 7.07 6.64

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Cash and bank balances 23  66,432,841  40,659,271 

Short term investments 22  1,917,633,419  1,811,501,834 

 1,984,066,260  1,852,161,105 
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32.1  Statement of financial position item

32.4  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation  

32.2  Movement in net defined benefit obligation

32.3  Amounts recognized in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)

  The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect of these benefits:

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Rate per annum

Discount rate per annum (compound rate) 7.25% 9.75%

Salary increase rate 6.00% 8.50%

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:

32.4  314,213,142  279,662,142 

Fair value of plan assets 32.5  (277,553,607)  (247,954,607)

32.2  36,659,535  31,707,535 

Balance at the beginning of the year  31,707,535  19,743,661 

Expense for the year 32.3  29,000,000  27,198,505 

Payment to fund during the year  (27,382,000)  (24,929,343)

Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income  3,334,000  9,694,712 

Balance at the end of the year 9.1  36,659,535  31,707,535 

Current service cost  25,787,000  24,610,671 

Interest cost  27,848,000  33,670,560 

Expected return on plan assets  (24,635,000)  (31,082,726)

Net Interest 25.1  29,000,000  27,198,505 

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligation  (1,526,000)  2,442,476 

Remeasurement loss on plan assets  4,860,000  7,252,236 

Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI  3,334,000  9,694,712 

Balance at the beginning of the year  279,662,142  248,749,090 

Transfer to Subsidiary - ITMinds Limited  1,475,000  (5,527,889)

Current service cost  25,787,000  24,610,671 

Interest cost  27,848,000  33,670,560 

 (19,033,000)  (24,282,766)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (1,526,000)  2,442,476 

Balance at the end of the year  314,213,142  279,662,142 
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32.5  Movement in fair value of plan assets

32.6  Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows:

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Balance at the beginning of the year  247,954,607  229,005,429 

Transfer to subsidiary -ITMinds Limited  1,475,000  (5,527,889)

Expected return on plan assets  24,635,000  31,082,726 

Contributions  27,382,000  24,929,343 

 (19,033,000)  (24,282,766)

Actuarial loss on plan assets  (4,860,000)  (7,252,236)

Balance at the end of the year  277,553,607  247,954,607 

Split by Vested/Non-Vested

314,214,142 279,662,142

   -    - 

 314,214,142  279,662,142

 181,810,766  130,575,766

 132,403,376  149,086,376

Weighted average duration of the Present value of defined benefit obligation (time in years)

 314,214,142  279,662,142

 9.61  9.80 

Time in years

 13,432,000  13,584,586 

 35,327,000  13,813,662 

 14,500,000  36,609,103 

 18,568,000  15,747,857 

 21,213,000  20,518,717 

 229,068,000  255,935,702 

Treasury Bills  76,756,607    - 

 130,897,000  184,274,327 

 63,342,000  57,094,273 

Mutual Funds    -  5,882,750 

Bank balance  6,558,000  703,257 

Total fair value of plan assets  277,553,607  247,954,607 
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  Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present value of defined benefit obligation

  These figures are based on the latest independent actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2016. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method.

      

32.7  The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2017 works out to be Rs. 28.2 million.

33  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES      

      

  Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in  

  making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement  

  benefit funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members.

  Aggregate transactions with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed elsewhere in the notes are as follows:

 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Base  314,214,142  279,662,142 

Discount Rate +1%  286,194,000  254,217,314 

Discount Rate -1%  346,923,000  309,333,783 

Expected rate of salary increase +1%  348,638,000  310,829,587 

Expected rate of salary increase -1%  284,288,000  252,552,439 

Rent of premises paid to: 

-  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated Company)  5,527,080  5,527,080 

 5,527,080  5,527,080 

 262,472  787,416 -  LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)

 5,789,552  6,314,496 

Rent expense:

-  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company)

-  LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)  838,472  763,556 

 6,365,552  6,290,636 

  Mark-up earned - Associated companies  267,495  176,565 
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  The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions  

  in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows: 

33.1  The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the comparable  

  uncontrolled valuation method.      

33.2  The Company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Company's policies and terms of  

  employment.       

  

34  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES       

      

34.1  Financial risk management

      

  The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management   

  framework. 

 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Shareholders  48,795,773  42,297,813 

Directors  1,240,959  1,336,949 

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship  55,069,625  16,827,135 

Contributions to retirement plans  52,746,584  43,066,636 

Transaction with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) - Annual subscription & Director's Training Program  754,400  316,000 

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated Company) 
 - Advertisement, parking & intercom  6,920,824  983,587 

Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)
 - Directors travelling  151,489  327,288 

Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited (Formerly Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)
 - Utilities & directors travelling  2,470,834  2,002,467 

Transaction / Balance with ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary

Balance as at July (558,068) 10,434,651 

Transactions - net 22,871,931 16,507,281 

Payment received (19,500,000) (27,500,000)

Balance as at June

Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary’s CDS eligibility

2,813,863 (558,068)

Transaction / Balance with CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary

Balance as at July    - 30,400 

Transactions - net 1,215,551 310,390 

12,500 12,500 

Payment received (1,215,551) (340,790)

Balance as at June    -    - 

Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary’s CDS eligibility 12,500 12,500 
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34.1.1  Market risk      

      

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price 

due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of 

securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.

(a) Currency risk

      

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.   

   

The Company is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Company are carried out in the local currency.  

 

(b) Interest rate risk      

      

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has 

fixed interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering 

management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest rate. Other assets 

and liabilities of the Company does not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially.      

The Company has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:      

  The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:      

   - Market risk      

  - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk      

  - Liquidity risk

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return, where as investment in TDCs and treasury bills are for a 

period of 3 months and 3-6 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Company.

(b) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the 

market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently entity has 

no security designated as  held for trading therfore there is no implications of price risks.

           

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 22  848,911,321  943,369,837 

Treasury Bills (Tbills) 22  685,881,550  340,991,662 

22  382,840,548  227,036,816 

 1,917,633,419  1,511,398,315 
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34.2  The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows: 

Mark-up bearing June 30, 2016

Note

mark-up
rates (%)

Less than 
one year 

Over one
year  to

Over five
years

Non
Markup
bearing

 Total 

----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------

Mark-up bearing June 30, 2015

Less than 
one year 

Over one
year  to

Over five
years

Non
Markup
bearing

 Total 

----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets 

Investments 15 & 22 5.99 - 12.25  1,917,633,419  -    -    -  1,917,633,419 

Loan and advances 16 & 19 0.00 - 3.00  6,584,428  37,207,757    -  1,583,543  45,375,728 

Deposits 17    -    -    -  6,756,018  6,756,018 

Trade debts 18    -    -    -  241,224,441  241,224,441 

Mark up accrued 20    -    -    -  40,635,772  40,635,772 

Other receivables 21    -    -    -  7,047,071  7,047,071 

Cash and bank balances 23 5.25 - 6.40  61,199,437    -    -  5,233,404  66,432,841 

 1,985,417,284  37,207,757    -  302,480,249  2,325,105,290 

Financial liabilities 

Deposits 7 &10    -    -    -  116,885,498  116,885,498 

Trade and other payables 9    -    -    -  273,897,125  273,897,125 

   -    -    -  390,782,623  390,782,623 

Note

mark-up
rates (%)

Financial assets 

Investments 15 & 22 6.72 - 12.25  1,511,398,315  -    -  300,103,519  1,811,501,834 

Loans 16 & 19 0.00 - 3.00  3,869,715  10,961,140    -  916,220  15,747,075 

Deposits 17    -    -    -  6,165,018  6,165,018 

Trade debts 18    -    -    -  168,422,573  168,422,573 

Mark-up accrued 20    -    -    -  41,887,810  41,887,810 

Other receivables 21    -    -    -  1,378,870  1,378,870 

Cash and bank balances 23 6.00 - 8.35  38,291,843    -    -  2,367,428  40,659,271 

 1,553,559,873  10,961,140    -  521,241,438  2,085,762,451 

Finaincial liabilities 

Deposit 7 &10    -    -    -  114,547,498  114,547,498 

Trade and other payables 9    -    -    -  232,485,210  232,485,210 

   -    -    -  347,032,708  347,032,708 
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34.3  Fair values of financial instruments      

      

Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in  an arm's length 

transaction. The Company prepares its unconsolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of 

available for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and  recognition of staff retirement benefits on the 

actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 

2016.        

34.4  Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 

      

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss.  

The Company is exposed to credit risk at very low level.

Rating Highest Lowest

Short Term A-1+ A-1+

Long Term AAA AA

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).   

     

The aging analysis of trade debts is provided in note 18.1        

        

34.5  Liquidity risk        

        

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and 

cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall 

funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.        

As at June 30, 2016 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below: 

As at June 30, 2015 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

Current Non-Current

Note

within 6 
months

within 6-12 
months

1 to 5 
years

later than
5 years Total

--------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------

Current Non-Current

Note

within 6 
months

within 6-12 
months

1 to 5 
years

later than
5 years Total

--------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------

Deposits 7 & 10 660,498 - - 116,225,000 116,885,498

Trade & other payable 9 237,897,125 - - - 273,897,125

274,557,623 - - 116,225,000 390,782,623

Deposits 7 & 10 734,998 - - 113,812,500 114,547,498

Trade & other payable 9 232,485,210 - - - 232,485,210

233,220,208 - - 113,812,500 347,032,708

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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35  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

June 30, 2016

Note

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sale Held to maturity Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------

June 30, 2015

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sale Held to maturity Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets 

Non current assets 

Long term loans 16  37,207,757    -    -    -  37,207,757 

Long term deposits 17  6,756,018    -    -    -  6,756,018 

 43,963,775    -    -    -  43,963,775 

Current assets 

Trade debts - net 18  241,224,441    -    -    -  241,224,441 

Loans and advances 19  8,167,971    -    -    -  8,167,971 

Mark-up accrued 20  40,635,772    -    -    -  40,635,772 

Other receivables 21  7,047,071    -    -    -  7,047,071 

Short term investments 22    -    -  1,917,633,419    -  1,917,633,419 

Cash and bank balances 23  66,432,841    -    -    -  66,432,841 

 363,508,096    -  1,917,633,419    -  2,281,141,515 

 407,471,871    -  1,917,633,419    -  2,325,105,290 

June 30, 2016

Amortized cost Held for trading Total

Financial liabilities

Non current liabilities 

Long term deposits 7  116,225,000    -  116,225,000 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 9  273,897,125    -  273,897,125 

Short term deposits 10  660,498    -  660,498 

 274,557,623    -  274,557,623 

 390,782,623    -  390,782,623 

Note

Financial assets 

Non current Assets 

long term loans 16  10,961,140    -    -    -  10,961,140 

Long term deposits 17  6,165,018    -    -    -  6,165,018 

 17,126,158    -    -  17,126,158 

Current Assets 

Trade debts - net 18  168,422,573    -    -    -  168,422,573 

Loan and advances 19  4,785,935    -    -    -  4,785,935 

Mark-up accrued 20  41,887,810    -    -    -  41,887,810 

Other receivables 21  1,378,870    -    -    -  1,378,870 

Short term investments 22    -  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  1,811,501,834 

Cash and bank balances 23  40,659,271    -    -    -  40,659,271 

 257,134,459  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  2,068,636,293 

 274,260,617  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  2,085,762,451 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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36  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS          

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most 

advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price 

is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.  

       

36.1  Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy          

     

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

    

 Level 1  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.     

  

 Level 2  Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.  

   as prices)  or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).        

      

   Level 3  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).  

      

Note

Financial liabilities

Non current liabilities 

Long term deposits 7  113,812,500    -  113,812,500 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 9  232,485,210    -  232,485,210 

Short term deposits 10  734,998    -  734,998 

 233,220,208    -  233,220,208 

 347,032,708    -  347,032,708 

------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------

June 30, 2015

Amortized cost Held for trading Total

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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36.2  Financial assets and liabilities          

           

  The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June  

  30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.     

June 30, 2016

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets measured at fair value

Available for sale securities

 382,840,548    - 

 - Treasury Bills

 - Term Deposit Certificates

 685,881,550    - 

 - Pakistan Investment Bonds  848,911,321    - 

Held to maturity investments

 - Treasury Bills    -    - 

Held for trading investments

 - Open end mutual funds    -    - 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

 45,375,728    - Loan and advances

 6,756,018    - Deposits

 241,224,441    - Trade debts

 40,635,772    - Mark up Accrued

 7,047,071    - Other receivables

 66,432,841    - Cash and bank balances

 2,325,105,290    - 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Deposits  116,885,498    - 

Trade and other payables  273,897,125    - 

 390,782,623    - 

 382,840,548 

 685,881,550 

 848,911,321 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 1,917,633,419 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 382,840,548 

 685,881,550 

 848,911,321 

   - 

   - 

 45,375,728 

 6,756,018 

 241,224,441 

 40,635,772 

 7,047,071 

 66,432,841 

 2,325,105,290 

 116,885,498 

 273,897,125 

 390,782,623 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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36.3  INFORMATION ABOUT VALUATION TECHNIQUE AND INPUTS USED

Item

Term Deposit 

Certificates

Units of Open-end 

Mutual Funds  

  

Valuation technique and inputs used 

Investment in debt securities (comprising of term finance certificates, bonds, sukuk certificates and any other 

security issued by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of redeemable 

capital) are valued on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in 

accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business day.     

  

           

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Available for sale securities

 - Treasury Bills

 - Term Deposit Certificates

 - Pakistan Investment Bonds

Held to maturity investments

 - Treasury Bills

Held for trading investments

 - Open end mutual funds

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loan and advances

Deposits

Trade debts

Mark up Accrued

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Deposits 

Trade and other payables

 227,036,816 

 147,562,259 

 943,369,837 

 193,429,403 

 300,103,519 

 15,747,075 

 6,165,018 

 168,422,573 

 41,887,810 

 1,378,870 

 40,659,271 

 2,085,762,451 

 114,547,498 

 232,485,210 

 347,032,708 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 300,103,519 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 300,103,519 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 227,036,816 

 147,562,259 

 943,369,837 

 193,429,403 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 1,511,398,315 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

   - 

 227,036,816 

 147,562,259 

 943,369,837 

 193,429,403 

 300,103,519 

 15,747,075 

 6,165,018 

 168,422,573 

 41,887,810 

 1,378,870 

 40,659,271 

 2,085,762,451 

 114,547,498 

  232,485,210

 347,032,708

June 30, 2015

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36.4  Non-financial assets and liabilities          

           

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis 

at June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.

37  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES          

    

It is the responsibiltiy of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and 

to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for 

shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors 

monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as profit after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors 

also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. The Company finances its operations through equity and management of working 

capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale 

investments and unappropriated profit. There was no change in the Company's approach to capital management during the year except that the 

Company is subject to minimum paid-up capital requirements as prescribed by the SECP. However, the Company is under discussion with SECP 

for revision in such requirements.          

       

38  SUBSEQUENT EVENT          

 

The directors in their meeting held on August 31, 2016 have proposed bonus shares @ 53.846% i.e. 35 million shares (2015: Nil) and  cash dividend 

of Re. 0.3077 per share (2015: Rs.3.25 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 3.077% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2016. The 

unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted    

for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

Item

Pakistan Investment 

Bonds and Market 

Treasury Bills

Valuation technique and inputs used 

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page)  

  

Land-lease hold  427,777,000    -    -  427,777,000  427,777,000 

Building  269,182,466    -    -  269,182,466  269,182,466 

 696,959,466    -    -  696,959,466  696,959,466 

Land-lease hold  427,777,000    -    -  427,777,000  427,777,000 

Building  292,686,971    -    -  292,686,971  292,686,971 

 720,463,971    -    -  720,463,971  720,463,971 

June 30, 2015

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

June 30, 2016

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39  EMPLOYEES          

40  DATE OF AUTHORISATION          

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 180th meeting held on August 31, 2016.

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Number of employees at the end of the year 415 395

Average number of employees during the year 406 383

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended June 30, 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT ON AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) are pleased to present their report together 
with Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its Subsidiary 
companies for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The consolidated results comprise of financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries ITMINDS Limited and CDC Trustee Company Limited. The Holding Company has 
annexed its consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements, in accordance with the 
requirement of International Accounting Standard 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The Directors 
Report, giving a commentary on the performance of Central Depository Company for the year ended June 30, 2016 has 
been presented separately. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi, dated: Wednesday, August 31, 2016

Muhammad Hanif  Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer

-Sd-

Rupees in million

702

Taxation 247

455

Earnings per share (Rs.) 7.00
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising of consolidated balance sheet of Central 
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee 
Company Limited as at June 30, 2016 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity together 
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed separate opinions on the financial 
statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary companies. 

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests 
of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of Central Depository Company 
of Pakistan Limited and its subsidiary companies as at June 30, 2016 and the results of their operations for the year then 
ended.

Karachi 
Date: August 31, 2016

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants   
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb

-Sd-



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

RupeesEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorised Share capital 

   150,000,000 (2015: 75,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

5

 1,500,000,000  750,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 

 650,000,000  650,000,000    65,000,000 (2015: 65,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Reserves

 100,000,000  100,000,000 Reserve fund

 1,591,301,368  1,338,409,847 

 1,696,236,176  1,463,455,533 

 4,934,808  25,045,686 Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net

 2,346,236,176  2,113,455,533 Total shareholders' equity 

6  465,862,802  475,083,518 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

Non-current liabilities

Long term deposits
7

 116,200,000  113,787,500 

Deferred taxation - net 8  66,710,364  83,873,751 

Total non-current liabilities  182,910,364  197,661,251 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9  359,418,116  315,608,340 
Short term deposits 10  660,498  734,998 

Unearned fee 11  42,601,748  46,819,007 

Taxation - net 12  22,882,421  20,398,304 

Total current liabilities  425,562,783  383,560,649 

Total liabilities  608,473,147  581,221,900 

Contingencies and commitments 13

Total equity and liabilities  3,420,572,125  3,169,760,951 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Property and equipment 14.1  891,704,038  881,489,580 

Intangibles 14.2  100,306,953  93,171,608 

 992,010,991  974,661,188 

Long term loans 15  37,207,757  10,961,140 

Long term deposits and prepayments 16  13,020,838  6,707,800 

Total non-current assets  1,042,239,586  992,330,128 

Current assets

Trade debts - net 17  246,010,424  172,844,230 

Loans and advances 18  8,826,458  5,182,626 

Prepayments  25,562,728  27,248,174 

Mark-up accrued 19  40,635,772  41,887,810 

Other receivables 20  5,141,511  2,913,881 

Short term investments 21  1,976,992,615  1,811,501,834 

Cash and bank balances 22  75,163,031  115,852,268 

Total current assets  2,378,332,539  2,177,430,823 

Total assets   3,420,572,125  3,169,760,951 



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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Sd-
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Operating income - Net 23  1,512,492,898  1,378,196,101 

Operating and administrative expenses 24  (962,285,578)  (868,321,509)

 550,207,320  509,874,592 

Other income 25  170,239,061  174,332,893 

Other operating expenses 26  (18,088,643)  (30,987,704)

Financial charges 27  (234,932)  (241,421)

 151,915,486  143,103,768 

 702,122,806  652,978,360 

Income tax expense 28  (246,834,374)  (234,003,796)

 455,288,432  418,974,564 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 29 7.00 6.45



Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 455,288,432  418,974,564 

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

     subsequently

 (29,001,383)  37,381,621

 (1,104,774) -

Unrealised (loss)/gain on remeasurement of available for sale investments

 9,995,279  (12,335,935)

Gain realised on disposal of investments

 (20,110,878)  25,045,686 

Impact of deferred tax

 (3,027,999)    (8,806,583)

 1,066,880   3,200,000 Impact of current tax

   -  (7,178,592)Impact of deferred tax

  (1,961,119)  (12,785,175)

  (22,071,997)  12,260,511Total other comprehensive (loss) / income

  433,216,435  431,235,075Total comprehensive income for the year

Surplus arising on revaluation of property and equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in a separate account 
below equity.  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 702,122,806  652,978,360 

Adjustments

Depreciation on property and equipment 14.1.1  94,701,067  83,090,230 

Amortization on intangibles 14.2.1  29,168,513  21,922,242 

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 25  (3,217,760)  (3,921,281)

Return on bank deposits 25  (4,015,374)  (6,434,774)

Gain on sale of available for sale investments 25  (150,498,699)  (26,769,858)

Gain on sale of held for trading investments 25  (5,445,922)

   - Dividend income 25  (3,332,610)

   - 

Return on investments - held to maturity    -  (63,810,190)

Financial charges 27  234,932  241,421 

31.3  30,432,000  28,798,047 

 (11,973,853)  33,115,837 

 690,148,953  686,094,197 

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Trade debts - net  (73,166,194)  (12,841,040)

Loans and advances  (3,643,832)  762,595 

Prepayments  1,685,446  (5,315,260)

Other receivables  (2,227,628)  3,451,924 

 (77,352,208)  (13,941,781)

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables  39,411,054  73,465,991 

Short term deposits  (74,500)  (625,000)

Unearned fees  (4,217,259)  5,666,882 

 35,119,295  78,507,873 

Decrease / (increase) in long term loans - net (assets)  (26,246,617)  1,970,297 

Decrease in long term deposits and prepayments (assets)  (6,313,038)  2,815,209 
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)  2,412,500  2,262,500 

 (30,147,155)  7,048,006 

Cash generated from operations  617,768,885  757,708,295 

31.2  (29,061,277)  (26,812,560)

Financial charges paid  (234,932)  (241,421)

Income tax paid  (248,857,981)  (218,513,824)

 (278,154,190)  (245,567,805)

Net cash from operating activities  339,614,695  512,140,490 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure incurred  (146,695,579)  (111,541,315)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  8,693,956  8,805,244 
Mark-up received  5,267,398  58,275,812 

Investments - net  125,838,464  640,109,254 

Dividend received  3,332,610 

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities  (3,563,151)  595,648,995 

-

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid  (211,250,000)  (195,000,000)

 (211,250,000)  (195,000,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  124,801,544  912,789,485 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,927,354,102  1,014,564,617 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30  2,052,155,646  1,927,354,102 

 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-

Issued, subscribed 
and paid-up share 

capital

* Reserve 
fund

 Unappropriated Surplus on 
revaluation of  

Available for sale 
investments-net

 Total 
 shareholders’ 

 equity

Note --------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance as at July 1, 2014  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,116,565,271    -  1,866,565,271 

Total comprehensive income  

   -    -  418,974,564    -  418,974,564 

 -  Other comprehensive income    -    -  (12,785,175)  25,045,686  12,260,511 

   -    -  406,189,389  25,045,686  431,235,075 

assets on account of incremental

depreciation - net of deferred tax 6 - -  10,655,187   -  10,655,187

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity

Final dividend paid @ 30% ( i.e. Rs. 3 per share)   -   -  (195,000,000)   -  (195,000,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2015  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,338,409,847  25,045,686  2,113,455,533 

Balance as at July 1, 2015  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,338,409,847  25,045,686  2,113,455,533 

Total comprehensive income 

     -    -  455,288,432    -  455,288,432 

  -  Other comprehensive income    -    -  (1,961,131)  (20,110,878)  (22,072,009)

   -    -  453,327,301  (20,110,878)  433,216,423 

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 

depreciation - net of deferred tax 6    -    -  10,814,220   -  10,814,220

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in equity 

Final dividend paid @ 32.5% ( i.e. Rs. 3.25 per share )   -   -  (211,250,000)   -  (211,250,000)

Balance as at  June 30, 2016  650,000,000  100,000,000  1,591,301,368  4,934,808  2,346,236,176 

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company.
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1  THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS   

The 'Group' consists of :

        

1.1  Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (The Holding Company), and its subsidiaries namely ITMinds Limited and CDC Trustee Company  

  Limited.        

             

Holding Company

        

Holding Company was incorporated, as a public company with its liability limited by shares, on January 21, 1993 and received certificate of 

commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activity of the Holding Company is to act as a depository for securities and 

to open securities account. The holding Company also acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities.       

Holding Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance 

Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations.  

 

Holding Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized Information Sharing 

Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).         

The registered office of the holding Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan.    

 

Subsidiaries

ITMinds Limited
        

ITMinds Limited (ITML) was incorporated as public limited company on December 8, 2011 and received certificate of commencement of business 

on January 30, 2012. The registered office of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The principal 

activities of the Company is to provide Information Technology and Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services.  The holding Company's 

controlling interest is 100%.      

ITML has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 

2016. 

CDC Trustee Company Limited 

CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) was incorporated as public limited unlisted Company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies 

Ordinance, 1984 on September 07, 2012 and received certificate of commencement of business on December 17, 2012. The registered office of 

the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The company was formed with an objective to act as trustee for 

open-end funds & closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide custodial services to closed end funds, 

discretionary/non-discretionary portfolios. The holding Company's controlling interest is 100%.      

  

CTCL has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 

2016.         

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

133



2  BASIS OF PRESENTATION    

2.1  Statement of compliance  

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. Approved  accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies  Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under 

the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Wherever the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

2.2  Basis of consolidation  
      

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. The assets and liabilities of the 

subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying value of the investment held by the Holding Company has been 

eliminated against corresponding holding in subsidiaries' shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements. All intra-group 

transactions, balances, income and expenses have been eliminated.        

The consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared for the same reporting year as the unconsolidated financial statements of the 

Holding Company and the subsidiaries, using same accounting policies consistently applied.

2.3  Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards         

  

2.3.1  Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the group and adopted in the current year  

    

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective 

during the current year. 

Standard, amendments and interpretation    Effective Date

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements    January 1, 2015    

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements      January 1, 2015  

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in other Entities    January 1, 2015

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement     January 1, 2015  

IAS 27 -   Separate Financial Statements     January 1, 2015

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended 

June 30, 2015 and 2016.        

    

2.3.2  Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant to the group    

      

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 1, 

2015 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's financial reporting and operations and are therefore not 

presented here.         

2.3.3  Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the group 

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 

against the respective standard or interpretation.        
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Standard, amendments and interpretation        Effective Date

IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation  of Financial Statements)    January 1, 2016  

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 ans IAS 28 - Investment Entities : Applying the Consolidation Exception     January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12  and IAS 28)      

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture  January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28      

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2012 - 2014 Cycle        January 1, 2016  

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation    January 1, 2016

(Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)        January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of deferred tax assets for Unrealized  Losses      January 1, 2017  

 

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the 

financial statements of the Group.        

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of  

Pakistan (SECP).         

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the 

purpose of applicability in Pakistan. 

Standard or Interpretation    IASB effective date (Annual periods  beginning on or after) 

IFRS 9   - Financial Instruments (2014)   January 1, 2018

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts   January 1, 2016

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers  January 1, 2018

IFRS 16 - Leases     January 1, 2019

2.4  Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 

benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments 

at fair value and amortised cost.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.   

      

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the  

Holding Company operates.          

         

2.5  Presentation and functional currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

2.6  General 

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

2.4.1

2.3.4

2.4.2

2.4.3
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3  CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES   

         

The preparation of  consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that 

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher 

degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as 

follows:

a) Staff retirement benefits        

b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets        

c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts        

d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation        

e) Revaluation of land and building        

f) Investments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future 

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have 

material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES        

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and 

methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1  Business combinations         

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control 

of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued 

by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition costs 

are expensed as incurred. 

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have been 

previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally 

measured at their acquisition-date fair values. 

4.2  Staff retirement benefits        

4.2.1  Defined benefit plan        

The Group operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying 

period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of 

actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or 

credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 31. 
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4.2.2  Defined contribution plan        

  

The Group also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund.    

  

Provident fund        

The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary are 

made to the fund both by the Group and the employees.        

      

Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund        
       

The Group has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014. 

Contributions are made by the Group to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.      

4.2.3  Compensated absences        

         

The Group has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on 

cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the consolidated financial statements on the basis of best 

management estimates.        

         

         

4.3  Property and equipment        

         

Owned        
         

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated 

at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluation has 

been accounted for as per section 235 of Companies Ordinance, 1984. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as 

a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.4.        

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14 and is charged to income. Depreciation on additions during the 

year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of retirement/disposal.      

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.   

Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major renovations and 

improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.       

Leased        

The Group accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined at 

the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated 

to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to income 

applying the same basis as for owned assets.        

Capital work-in-progress        

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work in progress 

account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under 

capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.
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4.3.1  Intangibles        

  

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Group and have probable economic benefit beyond one  

year are recognized as intangible assets.        

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line 

method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Group.     

Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement/disposal.    

The amortization period for software is five years.        

         

4.3.2  Impairment of non-financial assets        

         

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 

such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss 

account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 

fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, 

assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which there are generating separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).    

4.4  Borrowing costs        

         

Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly 

attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss account in the 

period in which they are incurred.        

4.5  Financial instruments        

         

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Initial recognition        

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it, including associated 

transaction costs except that are incurred on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are 

recorded in the profit and loss account.        

Subsequent measurement        

The financial assets are measured subsequently as described below: 

4.5.1  Financial assets        

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories upon initial recognition; namely loans and 

receivables, held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments. 

Held to maturity        
        

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and the Group has a positive intent and 

ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost.
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Available for sale investment          

  

Investments intended to be held for indefinite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, 

are classified as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated 

as available for sale financial asset, or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the balance sheet at 

fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on revaluation of 'available for sale' 

investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on available 

for sale investment is transferred to profit and loss account.        

Held for trading investments        

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in prices are classified as held for 

trading investment.         

Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss account. These investments are 

marked to market and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are 

taken to the profit and loss account for the year.         

Impairment of financial assets        
        

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is 

considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows 

of that asset.        

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 

reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, if no 

impairment loss had been recognised.

4.5.2  Financial liabilities        

         

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for those which are designated at fair 

value through profit and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with remeasurement gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. 

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value are reported in profit or loss account are included within 

finance costs or finance income.        

4.5.3  Derecognition        

Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Group losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial 

liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, 

or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the profit and loss account immediately. 

4.5.4  Off setting         

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legal right to set-off the 

transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.6  Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.       

 

4.7  Provisions, contingencies and commitments        

A provision is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when as a result of past events, the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

      

No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as 

contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote.

Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these consolidated financial statements at committed amounts.  

4.8  Trade and other payables        

         

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services.  

 

4.9  Foreign currency translations

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet 

date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange 

gains or losses are taken to income currently.        

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of 

the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 

the fair value was determined. 

   

4.10  Taxation        

4.10.1  Current         

         

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and 

rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws.

4.10.2  Deferred         

         

Deferred tax is provided for, using the balance sheet liability method, providing the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the 

expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 

enacted. The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive 

income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.
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4.11  Cash and cash equivalent      

Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the balance sheet at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose of consolidated statement of 

cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments which are highly liquid and 

maturing within three months from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 

insignificant risk of change in value.

4.12  Revenue recognition

 

Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement in CDS 

on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis.

Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading 

day of the month at the respective Stock Exchange of Pakistan. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost.   

Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.       

Other fees are recognized when the Group renders the related services.        

Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.     

Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to the 

sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.        

Revenue from Business Process Outsourcing services are recognised as the related services are performed, in accordance with specific terms of 

the contract with customers. 

Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise.       

Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.

4.13  Interest and Dividends Income

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other those from investments in 

associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established.

   

4.14  Dividend and Appropriation

Dividend distribution to the Group shareholders' of the holding company is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the 

period in which such dividends are approved as per the legal framework.       

4.15  Related party transactions        
 

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Holding Company at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation 

method.
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5  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

5.1  Associated companies held 44,787,600 (2015: 48,037,600) shares in the Company as at year end.

6  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 

7  LONG TERM DEPOSITS

7.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the CDS 

According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the Company for 

any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Number of shares 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash  10,000,000    000,000,01  100,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  issued as fully paid bonus shares 55,000,000  55,000,000  550,000,000

 65,000,000  65,000,000

 100,000,000

 550,000,000

 650,000,000  650,000,000

Note

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year 

 

 527,669,153  543,572,417 

- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred
  to unappropriated profit during the year - net of deferred tax  (10,814,220)  (10,655,187)

 - related deferred tax liability  (5,089,044)  (5,248,077)

 (15,903,264)  (15,903,264)

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year  511,765,889  527,669,153 

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

-   surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year  (52,585,635)  (59,586,249)

-   remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate  1,593,504  1,752,537 

-   incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred of profit and loss account 5,089,044  5,248,077 

Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year  8  (45,903,087)  (52,585,635)

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net    465,862,802  475,083,518 
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Due to: 

-  Participants  43,050,000  43,150,000 

-  Institutions  28,125,000  27,325,000 

-  Pledgees  1,500,000  1,200,000 

-  Issuers  43,525,000  42,112,500 

 116,200,000  113,787,500 
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8  DEFERRED TAXATION - NET          

9  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

10  SHORT TERM DEPOSITS  

9.1  Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations   

9.2  Accumulated compensated absences   

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary diffrences on:

- Provision for doubtful debts  (370,924)  (382,518)

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary diffrences on: 

- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model 
     over tax written down value of property and equipment

 18,837,595  19,334,699 

- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 6  45,903,087  52,585,635 

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments  2,340,606  12,335,935 

 66,710,364  83,873,751 

Payable to suppliers  3,880,615  8,043,588 

Accrued expenses  186,335,759  180,518,428 

9.1  67,746,325  60,190,936 

Investor account services - current account  59,204,020  45,670,607 

Workers' Welfare Fund  13,745,902  13,745,902 

Others  28,505,495  7,438,879 

 359,418,116  315,608,340 

31.2  35,010,550  30,611,828 

Accumulated Compensated absences 9.2  32,735,775  29,579,108 

 67,746,325  60,190,936 

Opening balance  29,579,108  24,294,296 

Provision for the year  6,596,910  8,661,033 

Payments made during the year  (3,440,243)  (3,376,221)

Closing balance  32,735,775  29,579,108 

Due to: 

-  Participants  361,637  261,137 

-  Institutions  298,861  473,861 

 660,498  734,998 
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11  UNEARNED FEE

12  TAXATION - NET

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed the order under section 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2008    

creating a tax demand of Rs. 10.071 million. The Holding Company had paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland 

Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)] which was decided vide order dated August 28, 2014 against the Holding Company. Presently, the appeal is 

pendingbefore the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, for adjudication. The Management, on the basis of opinion from tax advisor, is of the view 

that the appeal would eventually be decided in the Holding Company’s favour. 

13  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS        

         

13.1  CONTINGENCIES        

         

Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 upto June 2013 with regards to  chargeability of                                               

Sindh Sales Tax amounting to Rs.297 million including penalty. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Holding Company were falling 

under the ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC).

Currently the Holding Company has taken stay order from High Court of Sindh against the said order and the case is pending in Appellate Tribunal. 

The management on the basis of clarification from Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and opinions from advisors believes that the 

services rendered by the Holding Company does not fall under the ambit of NBFC and the case will have favorable outcome and thus no provision 

has been recorded in the financial statements.         

13.2  COMMITMENTS  

12.1
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 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Annual fee

 2,173,096  2,823,937 - Issuers

 12,485,889  18,924,732 - Investor Account Services (IAS)

 4,560,004  4,560,004 - Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants

 22,750  20,125 Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee

 20,525,509  20,490,209 Sub account maintenance fee

 2,834,500    - Others

 42,601,748  46,819,007 

Provision for taxation - net   22,882,421  20,398,304 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

  10,987,909  21,116,452 
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14  FIXED ASSETS

14.1  Property And Equipment

14.1.1  Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2016

Year ended June 30, 2015

Net book value at the beginning of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  38,520,098  22,489,080  73,589,094  874,430,592 
Additions    -  3,029,128  13,354,098  27,855,620  18,826,905  51,453,256  114,519,007 

Disposals 
Cost    -    -  (2,024,823)  (14,670,648)  (4,188,505)  (20,391,941)  (41,275,917)
Depreciation    -    -  2,024,064  9,530,588  3,926,802  20,374,266  35,855,720 

   -    -  (759)  (5,140,060)  (261,703)  (17,675)  (5,420,197)
Transfers

Cost    -    -    -    -  (28,000)    -  (28,000)
Depreciation    -    -    -    -  (27,999)    -  (27,999)

   -    -  (55,999)    -  (55,999)
Depreciation charge for the year    -  (26,533,633)  (5,503,491)  (17,117,824)  (8,576,488)  (36,969,633)  (94,701,069)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  269,182,466  27,218,197  44,117,834  32,421,795  88,055,042  888,772,334 

As at June 30, 2016

Cost / revalued amount  427,777,000  422,144,687  166,654,533  88,073,410  187,538,196  416,370,875  1,708,558,701 
Accumulated depreciation    -  (152,962,221)  (139,436,336)  (43,955,576)  (155,116,401)  (328,315,833)  (819,786,367)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  269,182,466  27,218,197  44,117,834  32,421,795  88,055,042  888,772,334 

Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

Net book value at the beginning of the year  427,777,000  319,215,951  6,640,483  44,446,179  23,603,774  75,135,631  896,819,018 
Additions    -    -  16,197,802  13,375,897  6,637,691  29,374,377  65,585,767 

Disposals 
Cost    -  (46,249)  (11,786,499)  (17,333,045)  (5,847,284)  (29,071,463)  (64,084,540)
Depreciation    -  24,266  11,786,391  12,739,834  5,717,732  28,932,354  59,200,577 

   -  (21,983)  (108)  (4,593,211)  (129,552)  (139,109)  (4,883,963)

Depreciation charge for the year    -  (26,506,997)  (3,469,828)  (14,708,767)  (7,622,833)  (30,781,805)  (83,090,230)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  38,520,098  22,489,080  73,589,094  874,430,592 

As at June 30, 2015

Cost / revalued amount  427,777,000  419,115,559  155,325,258  74,888,438  172,927,796  385,309,560  1,635,343,611 
Accumulated depreciation    -  (126,428,588)  (135,956,909)  (36,368,340)  (150,438,716)  (311,720,466)  (760,913,019)
Net book value at the end of the year  427,777,000  292,686,971  19,368,349  38,520,098  22,489,080  73,589,094  874,430,592 

Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

OWNED

Leasehold land Building and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Computer 
equipment

 Total Operating 
Assets 

OWNED

Leasehold land Building and electrical 
equipment

Vehicles Computer 
equipment

 Total Operating 
Assets 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Operating assets 14.1.1  888,772,334  874,430,592 
Capital work-in-progress 14.1.4  2,931,704  7,058,988 

 891,704,038  881,489,580 



14.1.4  Capital work in progress

14.2  Intangibles 

14.2.1  Softwares 

14.2.2  Softwares under implementation  

14.1.2  Land - Lease hold and building have been revalued on June 30, 2012 by an independent valuer on the basis of professional assessments of the  

  market values.        

         

14.1.3  Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and Net book value would have been as follows:    
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Cost Net Book value under cost model

June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Land- lease hold  59,458,250  59,458,250  59,458,250  59,458,250 
Building  215,084,492  212,055,364  125,735,327  133,336,568 

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Balance at the beginning of the year  7,058,988  4,836,995 

Additions
 9,977,631  14,375,372 

-  Building  7,370,460    - 
 64,724,417  38,263,201 

-  Vehicles  24,272,120  11,547,833 
 106,344,628  64,186,406 
 113,403,616  69,023,401 

Transferred to operating assets 14.1.1  (110,471,933)  (61,964,413)
Balance at the end of the year  2,931,683  7,058,988 

Softwares 14.2.1  94,175,563  86,858,561 
Softwares under implementation 14.2.2  6,131,390  6,313,047 

 100,306,953  93,171,608 

As at June 30,
Cost  292,687,936  248,275,935 
Accumulated amortization  (205,829,375)  (183,907,133)
Net book value  86,858,561  64,368,802 

For the year ended June 30,
Net book value at the beginning of the year  86,858,561  64,368,802 
Additions  36,485,515  44,412,001 
Amortization charge for the year 24  (29,168,513)  (21,922,242)
Net book value at the end of the year  94,175,563  86,858,561 

Cost  329,173,451  292,687,936 
Accumulated amortization  (234,997,888)  (205,829,375)
Net book value at the end of the year  94,175,563  86,858,561 

Amortization rate 20% 20%

Balance at the beginning of the year  6,313,047  6,991,493 
Additions  36,303,858  43,733,555 

 42,616,905  50,725,048 
Transferred to softwares 14.2.1  (36,485,515)  (44,412,001)
Balance at the end of the year  6,131,390  6,313,047 
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15.1  Interest ranging from 3% to 5% per annum on monthly outstanding balance  is recovered on house loans and taken to profit and loss account.  

  Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years. 

15.2  Interest at 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to profit and loss account. However, no interest is  

  recovered from employees who surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment period for car loan is five years.  

     

15.3  The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 41.912 million (2015: Rs. 17.100 million).  
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14.3  Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 50,000 or above:

15  LONG TERM LOANS  

  Reconciliation of loan to executives

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Considered good - secured

- Housing loans 15.1  30,199,678  4,211,143 

- Car loans 15.2  13,592,507  10,619,712 

 43,792,185  14,830,855 

Transferred to current maturity 18  (6,584,428)  (3,869,715)

 37,207,757  10,961,140 

Loan outstanding for period:

More than one year but less than three years  11,847,023  6,625,074 

More than three years  25,360,734  4,336,066 

 37,207,757  10,961,140 

Balance at beginning of the  year  8,684,977  9,700,760 

Add: Disbursement / addition during  the year  30,271,844  1,456,700 

 38,956,821  11,157,460 

less: Recovered during the year  (5,358,123)  (2,472,483)

Balance at the end of the year  33,598,698  8,684,977 
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Particular of Assets
Cost Accumulated 

depreciation Written Down 
Value

Sale
proceeds 

Gain / (loss)
on disposal

Particulars of buyer

--------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------

iPhone 5s 65,000 11,917 53,083 27,000 (26,083) Insurance Claim

Toyota Corolla XLI 1,537,500 871,250 666,250 1.205,000 538,750 Sold to employee
(Shah Muhammad Ishaq)

Toyota Corolla XLI 1,627,500 135,625 1,497,875 1,600,000 108,125

Honda City 1,466,000 830,733 635,267 147,900 (487,367) Sold to employee 
(Tariq Abdul Aziz)

Suzuki Cultus 1,075,290 71,686 1,003,604 1,050,000 46,396 Insurance Claim

Insurance Claim

Honda City 1,447,000 916,433 530,567 1,310,786 780,219 M/s Ittehad Motors

Toyota Corolla XLI 1,948,750 1,169,250 779,500 1,525,000 745,500 Insurance Claim

Total 9,167,040 4,006,894 5,160,146 6,865,686 1,705,540



16  LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 

17.1  The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:

17  TRADE DEBTS - NET 
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Rupees

Deposits 

 - Utilities  4,868,018 
 

1,247,000 

 50,000 

 6,165,018 

 542,782 

 6,707,800 

 4,909,018 

 1,872,000 

 -   

 6,781,018 

 6,239,820 
 

13,020,838 

 119,901,799 

 52,942,431 
 

172,844,230 

 1,159,136 

 174,003,366 

 (1,159,136)

 172,844,230 

 166,437,078 
 

79,573,346 
 

246,010,424 

 1,159,136 
 

247,169,560 

 (1,159,136)

 246,010,424 

 - Rented premises

 - Clubs membership 

Prepayments

Considered good:

 - secured

 - unsecured

Considered doubtful, unsecured 17.1

Provision for impairment 17.2

Within 45 days

46 to 90

Over 91 days

Total

The Group reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently opening  

balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4  

million (2015: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2015: 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end.     

    

17.3  Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 14.6 million (2015: Rs. 7.3 million).  

17.3.1  The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:       

17.2
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Gross Impaired Net Gross Impaired Net

 216,036,896

 29,973,528

 1,159,136

 247,169,560

- 

- 

 1,159,136

1,159,136

216,036,896

29,973,528

-

246,010,424

 163,154,565

 9,689,665

 1,159,136

 174,003,366

-

-

 1,159,136

1,159,136

163,154,565

9,689,665

-

172,844,230

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Within 45 days

46 to 90

Over 91 days

Total

Gross Impaired Net Gross Impaired Net

 9,400,965 

 5,223,018 

-
 

 14,623,983 

- 

- 

- 

- 

9,400,965 

5,223,018 

-

14,623,983

6,121,821 

 1,155,698 

- 

7,277,519

- 

- 

-

-

6,121,821

1,155,698

-

7,277,519
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17.4  The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the year  

  was Rs. 17.1 million (2015: Rs. 10.6 million). 

18  LOANS AND ADVANCES         

       

18.1  All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

19  MARK-UP ACCRUED

20.1  All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired. 

21  SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS  

20  OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Current maturity of long term loans 15  6,584,428  3,869,715 

Considered doubtful, unsecured

-  Advance to employee  1,583,543  916,220 

-  Advance for expenses  658,487  396,691 

 2,242,030  1,312,911 

 8,826,458  5,182,626 

Mark-up accrued on Bank deposits    -  242,666 

Mark-up accrued on PIBs 22.4  40,635,772  41,645,144 

 40,635,772  41,887,810 

Sales tax refundable  908,303  1,535,011 

Others  4,233,208  1,378,870 

 5,141,511  2,913,881 

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Held-to-maturity investments-

Unquoted debt securities 

-  Treasury Bills 21.2 & 30

21.3 & 30

21.1 & 30

21.2 & 30

22.4 & 31

   -  193,429,403 

Held for trading investments  59,359,196  300,103,519 

Available for sale investments

 382,840,548  227,036,816 

-  Treasury Bills  685,881,550  147,562,259 

-  Pakistan Investment Bonds  848,911,321  943,369,837 

 1,976,992,615  1,811,501,834 
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21.1  This represents investment in fixed Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 6.40% to 7.50% per annum (2015: 7.25% to  

  9.95% per annum).      

21.2  This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 5.99% to 8.97% per annum (2015: 6.72% to 9.97% per   

  annum).       

       

21.3  This represents investment in open ended mutual fund.       

       

21.4  The Holding Company has investments in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs). These are measured at fair value using  the effective interest method.  

  The effective interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2015: 7.89% to 12.25%) per annum. 

22  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

22.1  The rate of profit varies from 5.25% to 6.40% (2015: 6.00% to 8.35%) per annum.    

     

22.2  Bank balances include Rs. 7.169 million (2015: Rs. 3.840 million) held with related parties. 

23  OPERATING INCOME      

23.1  Depository services - net
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Bank balances

-  in saving accounts 22.1  69,919,627  113,484,840 

-  in current accounts  5,095,085  2,235,824 

Cash in hand  148,319  131,604 

 75,163,031  115,852,268 

Depository services - net 23.1  995,516,167  933,982,481 

Trusteeship and custodial services - net 23.2  462,115,721  403,423,649 

Share Registrar Services - net 23.3  39,843,103  33,700,529 

Business Process Outsourcing Services / IT Services-net  20,416,705  12,856,935 

Miscellaneous Income - net 23.4  5,001,487  3,948,825 

 1,522,893,183  1,387,912,419 

SECP supervision fee 23.5

23.1.1

 (10,400,285)  (9,716,318)

 1,512,492,898  1,378,196,101 

 1,137,328,269  933,982,481 

Depository Services  (141,812,102)    - 

Less: Sales Tax  995,516,167  933,982,481 
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23.1.1  Depository services - net

23.1.3  Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2015: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee which is  

  borne by the Holding Company.

23.2  Trusteeship and custodial services - net   

23.2.1  SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2015: 0.005%) of average annual assets of Open End Scheme or Closed End Scheme under its trusteeship.

23.3  Share Registrar Services - net 

23.5  SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2015: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.

23.4  Miscellaneous Income - net 

23.1.2  Transaction fee - net 

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Transaction fee 23.1.2  145,031,594  153,841,158 

Custody fee  378,103,369  344,841,394 

Sub account maintenance fee  58,505,450  54,064,698 

CDS connection fee  28,025,500  27,452,000 

Securities induction fee  226,681,017  211,555,272 

Annual fee  133,373,920  129,833,425 

Cancellation fee  18,180,331  7,431,264 

Withdrawal fee  5,090,186  2,528,470 

RSA service charges  2,524,800  2,434,800 

 995,516,167  933,982,481 

Transaction fee  175,390,453  185,362,053 

Less: SECP levy 23.1.3  (30,358,859)  (31,520,895)

 145,031,594  153,841,158 

Trusteeship and custodial businesses  551,429,835  425,355,542 

Less: SECP levy 23.2.1  (23,068,345)  (21,931,893)

Less: Sales Tax  (66,245,769)    - 

 462,115,721  403,423,649 

Share registrar services  46,258,011  33,700,529 

Less: Sales Tax  (6,414,908)    - 

 39,843,103  33,700,529 

Miscellaneous Income  5,695,029  3,948,825 

Less: Sales Tax  (693,542)    - 

 5,001,487  3,948,825 

151



24  OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  

24.1  Salaries and other benefits include:  

24.2  Amount charged in consolidated financial statements in respect of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives are:
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

24.1 & 24.2  545,549,309  496,011,487 

Travelling and conveyance  8,863,699  8,853,073 

Vehicle running and maintenance  14,018,842  13,720,932 

Training and development  14,632,422  3,970,877 

Communication  10,495,634  11,016,230 

Printing and stationery  10,011,968  8,739,798 

Rent, rates and taxes  16,527,328  14,372,806 

Insurance  24,266,411  22,551,299 

Repairs and maintenance  65,076,061  63,431,495 

Legal and professional charges  18,816,991  19,147,853 

Fee and subscription  8,519,734  4,222,357 

Advertisement and publicity  21,705,632  17,978,968 

 4,329,668  3,824,558 

Meeting expenses  7,793,577  6,525,884 

Wide-area-network line rent  9,775,331  8,989,077 

Auditors' remuneration 24.3  2,849,199  2,440,607 

Depreciation 14.1.1  94,701,067  83,090,230 

Amortization 14.2.1  29,168,513  21,922,242 

Fuel and electricity  31,445,079  36,005,923 

Security services  9,891,230  9,205,535 

Cafeteria  8,449,136  6,943,696 

Miscellaneous  5,398,747  5,356,582 

 962,285,578  868,321,509 
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 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

CEO Executives CEO Executives

Managerial Remuneration

Number of Person

29,606,987 179,509,996 25,671,735 173,893,447

Bonus 21,854,500 56,180,500 20,468,600 51,283,689

Gratuity 2,547,604 14,197,094 2,207,050 13,920,542

Provident fund

Defined contribution gratuity fund

1,698,403 10,105,925 1,471,369 9,423,081

- 961,794 - 306,940

55,707,494 260,955,309 49,818,754 248,827,699

2 93 2 94

- Compensated absences 9.2

31.3

 6,596,910  8,661,033 

- Gratuity  30,432,000  28,798,047 

 4,371,424  1,771,835 

- Contribution to provident fund  22,552,957  17,959,458 

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------
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24.2.1  The CEO and executives are provided with the Group maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits in  

  accordance with the terms of employment.        

24.2.2  The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 6,240,000 (2015: Rs. 5,100,000).

24.3  Auditors' remuneration 

These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2016. The audited financial statements of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. 

Investments out of Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and the 

rules formulated for this purpose.

25  OTHER INCOME 

24.4.1

24.4  Employees Provident Fund 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Audit fees  1,711,306  1,589,193 

Half year review  434,545  391,314 

Others  703,348  460,100 

 2,849,199  2,440,607 

 60,838,746  57,124,619 - Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)

 419  325 - Number of members

 46,453,592  46,836,191- Cost of investments made (Rupees)

76% 82%- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund

 48,512,183  49,110,460 - Fair value of investments (Rupees)

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 - Return on bank deposits  4,015,374  6,434,774 

 - Interest on loans to employees  588,602  127,696 

 - Dividend Income  3,332,610    - 

 - Return on investments - held to maturity    -  105,212,348 

 - Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments  54,850  29,808,590 

 - Realized gain on held-for-trading investments  5,445,922    - 

- Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment  150,498,699  26,769,858 

 163,936,057  168,353,266 

 - Gain on disposal of property and equipment  3,217,760  3,921,281 

 2,614,100  1,919,304 

 - Others  471,144  139,042 

 6,303,004  5,979,627 

 170,239,061  174,332,893 
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26 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  

Donation amounting to Rs. 11.25 million (2015: 3.75 Million)  have been made to a donee in which a director has common directorship. No other  

director and their spouses had any interest in any other donees during the year.

27 FINANCIAL CHARGES

26.1

28.1 The income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2015, except as disclosed in note 12.1.  

 

 The income tax assessments of the ITMinds Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year 2015.  

      

 The income tax assessments of the CDC Trustee Company Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year  

 2015.

28.2 Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Donations 26.1  18,088,643  17,408,187 

Workers welfare fund    -  13,579,517 

 18,088,643  30,987,704 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

Bank charges  234,932  241,421 

Current  252,408,930  239,603,796 

Deferred  (5,574,556)  (5,600,000)

 246,834,374  234,003,796 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 702,122,806  652,978,360 

Enacted tax rate 32% 33%

Tax charge at enacted rate

Tax efffect of exempt income or income taxed at different rate

 224,679,298  215,482,859 

 (380,872)  (6,933,039)

 21,500,000  20,500,000 Super tax

 1,035,948  4,953,976 Others

 246,834,374  234,003,796 
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29 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

  

29.1 Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 

29.2 Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted      

       

 Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Group does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2016 and  

 2015 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable. 

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS      

       

The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the gratuity 

fund.

The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions used 

in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2016 are as follows:       

31.1 Statement of financial position item 

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

 455,288,432  418,974,564 

 Number of shares 

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares  65,000,000  65,000,000 

Rupees Rupees

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 7.00 6.45

 June 30, 2016  June 30, 2015

Rate per annum

Discount rate per annum (compound rate) 7.25% 9.75%

Salary increase rate 6.00% 8.50%

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:

31.4  324,451,815  289,800,093 

Fair value of plan assets 31.5  (289,441,265)  (259,188,265)

31.2  35,010,550  30,611,828 
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Note

Cash and bank balances 22  75,163,031  115,852,268 

Short term investments 21  1,976,992,615  1,811,501,834 

 2,052,155,646  1,927,354,102 



31.3  Amounts recognized in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)     

 

The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect of these   

benefits:

31.4  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

31.5  Movement in fair value of plan assets 

 Balance at the beginning of the year   
 
 Expected return on plan assets  

 Contributions 

 Benefits paid 

 Actuarial loss on plan assets 

 Balance at the end of the year  

 259,188,265 
 

25,773,000 
 

29,061,000 
 

(19,540,000)

 (5,041,000)
 

289,441,265 

 232,462,598 

 31,589,893 

 26,812,560 
 

(24,453,898)

 (7,222,888)

 259,188,265 

31.2  Movement in net defined benefit obligation  
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Current service cost  27,321,000  26,200,738 

Net interest cost  28,884,000  34,187,202 

Expected return on plan assets  (25,773,000)  (31,589,893)

Expense for the year  30,432,000  28,798,047 

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligation  (2,013,000)  1,583,695 

Remeasurement loss on plan assets  5,041,000  7,223,888 

Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI  3,028,000  8,807,583 

Balance at the beginning of the year  289,800,093  252,282,356 

Current service cost  27,321,000  26,200,738 

Interest cost  28,883,722  34,187,202 

 (19,540,000)  (24,453,898)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  (2,013,000)  1,583,695 

Balance at the end of the year  324,451,815  289,800,093 
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Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Balance at the beginning of the year  30,611,828  19,819,758 

Expense for the year 31.3

24.1

9.1

 30,432,000  28,798,047 

Payment to fund during the year  (29,061,277)  (26,812,560)

Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income  3,027,999  8,806,583 

Balance at the end of the year  35,010,550  30,611,828 



These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2016. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. The Group 

recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2017 works out to be Rs. 28.2 million.      

Distribution of timing of benefit payments  

31.6  Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows:  

Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions 

Actuarial Liability  
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Split by Vested/Non-Vested

324,451,815 289,800,093 

   -    - 

 324,451,815 289,800,093 

 186,971,439 134,581,777 

 137,480,376 155,218,316 

Weighted average duration of the Present value of defined benifit obligation (time in years)

 324,451,815 289,800,093 

 9.61 9.88

Time in years

 13,939,000  14,128,492 

 35,898,000  14,459,322 

 15,112,000  37,391,365 

 19,226,000  16,610,810 

 21,918,000  21,469,493 

 233,230,000  262,311,342 

Treasury Bills  80,044,607 

 5,607,000 

 130,897,000  192,622,931 

 66,055,000  59,680,946 

-

-

Mutual Funds    -  6,149,270 

Bank balance  6,839,000  735,118 

Total fair value of plan assets  289,442,607  259,188,265 

Base  314,214,142  289,800,093 

Discount Rate +1%  295,320,000  263,225,779 

Discount Rate -1%  358,469,000  320,814,828 

Expected rate of salary increase +1%  360,242,000  322,366,780 

Expected rate of salary increase -1%  293,349,000  261,497,740 
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 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees

 June 30, 2016
 Rupees

 June 30, 2015
Rupees
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32  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in 

making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, retirement 

benefit funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members.

      

Aggregate transactions with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:

The shareholders and directors of the Group are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions in CDS 

relating to shareholders and directors are as follows: 

 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Rent of premises paid to: 

-  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated Company)  5,527,080  5,527,080 

  787,416 -  LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)  262,472

  
 5,789,552  6,314,496

Rent expense:

-  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company)  5,527,080  5,527,080  
-  LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)  838,472  763,556 

 

 6,365,552  6,290,636

Mark-up earned - Associated companies  267,495  176,565 

 June 30, 2016
Rupees

June 30, 2015
Rupees

Shareholders  48,795,773  42,297,813 

Directors  1,240,959  1,336,949 

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue of common directorship  55,069,625  16,827,135 

Contributions to retirement plans  55,985,381  43,066,636 

Transaction with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) - Annual subscription & Director's Training Program  754,400  316,000 

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company)
 - Advertisement, parking & intercom  6,920,824  983,587

 
Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited (Formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)
- Directors travelling  151,489  327,288

Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited (Formerly Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited- Associated Company)
 - Utilities & directors travelling  2,470,834  2,002,467
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32.1  The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the comparable  
  uncontrolled valuation method.      

32.2  The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group's policies and terms of   
  employment.       

33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES       
       

33.1  Financial risk management      
       
  The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.  
     
  The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:      
       

- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 

       
33.1.1  Market risk      
       

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price 
due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of  
securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk.      

(a) Currency risk      

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.   

The Group is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Group are carried out in the local currency.   

(b) Interest rate risk      
       
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Group has fixed 
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity 
of the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market 
interest rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially.    

The Group has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return:      

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return, where as investment in TDCs and treasury bills are for a 

period of 3 months and 3-6 months respectively. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Group.

Note
 June 30, 2016

 Rupees
 June 30, 2015

Rupees

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 21  848,911,321  943,369,837 

Treasury Bills (Tbills) 21  685,881,550  340,991,662 

21  382,840,548  227,036,816 

 1,917,633,419  1,511,398,315 
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(b) Price risk      

      

Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the 

market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently entity has 

no security designated as  held for trading therefore there is no implications of price risks.

33.2  The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows: 

Mark-up bearing June 30, 2016

Note

mark-up
rates (%)

Less than 
one year 

Over one
year  to

five years

Over five 
years 

Non
Markup
bearing

 Total 

-------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------

Mark-up bearing June 30, 2015

Note

mark-up
rates (%)

Less than 
one year 

Over one
year  to

five years

Over five 
years 

Non
Markup
bearing

 Total 

Financial assets 

Investments 21 5.99 - 12.25  1,917,633,419  -    -    -  1,917,633,419 

Loan and advances 15 & 18 0.00 - 3.00  6,584,428  37,207,757    -  1,583,543  45,375,728 

Deposits 16    -    -    -  6,781,018  6,781,018 

Trade debts 17    -    -    -  246,010,424  246,010,424 

Mark up Accrued 19    -    -    -  40,635,772  40,635,772 

Other receivables 20    -    -    -  5,141,511  5,141,511 

Cash and bank balances 22 5.25 - 6.40  69,919,627    -    -  5,243,404  75,163,031 

 1,994,137,474  37,207,757    -  305,395,672  2,336,740,903 

Financial liabilities 

Deposits 7 & 10    -    -    -  116,860,498  116,860,498 

Trade and other payables 9    -    -    -  277,925,889  277,925,889 

   -    -    -  394,786,387  394,786,387 

Financial assets 

Investments 21 6.72 - 12.25  1,511,398,315  -    -  300,103,519  1,811,501,834 

Loan and advances 15 & 18 0.00 - 3.00  3,869,715  10,961,140    -  916,220  15,747,075 

Deposits 16    -    -    -  6,165,018  6,165,018 

Trade debts 17    -    -    -  172,844,230  172,844,230 

Mark up Accrued 19    -    -    -  41,887,810  41,887,810 

Other receivables 20    -    -    -  2,913,881  2,913,881 

Cash and bank balances 22 6.00 - 8.35  113,484,840    -    -  2,367,428  115,852,268 

 1,628,752,870  10,961,140    -  527,198,106  2,166,912,116 

Financial liabilities 

Deposits 7 & 10    -    -    -  114,522,498  114,522,498 

Trade and other payables 9    -    -    -  241,671,502  241,671,502 

   -    -    -  356,194,000  356,194,000 
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33.3  Fair values of financial instruments        

         

Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in  an arm's length 

transaction. The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of available 

for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost and  recognition of staff retirement benefits on the actuarial 

valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 2016. 

33.4  Credit risk and concentration of credit risk        

         

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial loss.  

The Group is exposed to credit risk at very low level.        

 
Rating     Highest   Lowest   

         

Short Term         A-1+      A-1+  

Long Term       AAA      AA  

         

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).   

33.5  Liquidity risk        

         

Liquidity risk reflects the Group's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Group's liquidity and cash 

flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix 

and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.        

As at June 30, 2016 the Group's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

As at June 30, 2015 the Group's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
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Current Non-Current

Note

within 6 
months

within 6-12 
months

1 to 5 
years

later than
5 years Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Current Non-Current

Note

within 6 
months

within 6-12 
months

1 to 5 
years

later than
5 years Total

-----------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Deposits 7 & 10 660,498 - - 116,200,000 116,860,498

Trade & other payable 9 277,925,889 - - - 277,925,889

278,586,387 - - 116,200,000 394,786,387

Deposits 7 & 10 734,998 - - 113,787,500 114,522,498

Trade & other payable 9 241,671,502 - - - 241,671,502

242,406,500 - - 113,787,500 356,194,000



162

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2016

34  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES    
June 30, 2016

Note

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sale Held to maturity Total

---------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------

Financial assets 

Non current assets 

Long term loans 15  37,207,757    -    -    -  37,207,757 

Long term deposits 16  6,781,018    -    -    -  6,781,018 

 43,988,775    -    -    -  43,988,775 

Current assets 

Trade debts - net 17  246,010,424    -    -    -  246,010,424 

Loans and advances 18  8,167,971    -    -    -  8,167,971 

Mark-up accrued 19  40,635,772    -    -    -  40,635,772 

Other receivables 20  5,141,511    -    -    -  5,141,511 

Short term investments 21    -  59,359,196  1,917,633,419    -  1,976,992,615 

Cash and bank balances 22  75,163,031    -    -    -  75,163,031 

 375,118,709  59,359,196  1,917,633,419    -  2,352,111,324 

 419,107,484  59,359,196  1,917,633,419    -  2,396,100,099 

June 30, 2016

Amortized Cost Held for trading Total

Financial liabilities

Non current liabilities 

Long term deposits 7  116,200,000    -  116,200,000 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 9  277,925,889    -  277,925,889 

Short term deposits 10  660,498    -  660,498 

 278,586,387    -  278,586,387 

 394,786,387    -  394,786,387 

June 30, 2015

Note

Loan and 
receivables Held for trading Available for sale Held to maturity Total

Financial assets 

Non current assets 

Long term loans 15  10,961,140    -    -    -  10,961,140 

Long term deposits 16  6,165,018    -    -    -  6,165,018 

 17,126,158    -    -  17,126,158 

Current assets 

Trade debts - net 17  172,844,230    -    -    -  172,844,230 

Loans and advances 18  5,182,626    -    -    -  5,182,626 

Mark-up accrued 19  41,887,810    -    -    -  41,887,810 

Other receivables 20  2,913,881    -    -    -  2,913,881 

Short term investments 21    -  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  1,811,501,834 

Cash and bank balances 22  115,852,268    -    -    -  115,852,268 

 338,680,815  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  2,150,182,649 

 355,806,973  300,103,519  1,317,968,912  193,429,403  2,167,308,807 
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35  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS          

           

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most 

advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price 

is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.         

         
35.1  Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy          

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:     
        

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.       

        

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly  

 (i.e. derived from prices).         

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).    
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-----------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------

June 30, 2015

Note
Amortized Cost Held for trading Total

Financial liabilities

Non current liabilities 

Long term deposits 7  113,787,500    -  113,787,500 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 9  241,671,502    - 

Short term deposits 10  734,998    - 

 242,406,500    - 

 356,194,000 

 241,671,502 

 734,998 

 242,406,500 

 356,194,000    - 
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35.2  Financial assets and liabilities          

           

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 

30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.
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June 30, 2016

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Available for sale securities

 382,840,548    -  382,840,548    -  382,840,548 

 - Treasury Bills

 - Term Deposit Certificates

 685,881,550    -  685,881,550    -  685,881,550 

 - Pakistan Investment Bonds  848,911,321    -  848,911,321    -  848,911,321 

Held to maturity investments

 - Treasury Bills    -    -    -    -    - 

Held for trading investments

 - Open end mutual funds    -    -    -    -    - 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

 45,375,728    -    -    -  45,375,728 Loan and advances

 6,781,018    -    -    -  6,781,018 Deposits

 246,010,424    -    -    -  246,010,424 Trade debts

 40,635,772    -    -    -  40,635,772 Mark up Accrued

 5,141,511    -    -    -  5,141,511 Other receivables

 75,163,031    -    -    -  75,163,031 Cash and bank balances

 2,336,740,903    -  1,917,633,419    -  2,336,740,903 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Deposits  116,860,498    -    -    -  116,860,498 

Trade and other payables  277,925,889    -    -    -  277,925,889 

 394,786,387    -    -    -  394,786,387 
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 - Term Deposit Certificates

June 30, 2015

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

--------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------

Financial assets measured at fair value

Available for sale securities

 227,036,816    -  227,036,816    -  227,036,816 

 - Treasury Bills  147,562,259    -  147,562,259    -  147,562,259 

 - Pakistan Investment Bonds  943,369,837    -  943,369,837    -  943,369,837 

Held to maturity investments

 - Treasury Bills  193,429,403    -  193,429,403    -  193,429,403 

Held for trading investments

 - Open end mutual funds  300,103,519  300,103,519    -    -  300,103,519 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

 16,143,766    -    -    -  16,143,766 Loan and advances

 6,165,018    -    -    -  6,165,018 Deposits

 172,844,230    -    -    -  172,844,230 Trade debts

 41,887,810    -    -    -  41,887,810 Mark up Accrued

 2,913,881    -    -    -  2,913,881 Other receivables

 115,852,268    -    -    -  115,852,268 Cash and bank balances

 2,167,308,807  300,103,519  1,511,398,315    -  2,167,308,807 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Deposits  114,522,498    -    -    -  114,522,498 

Trade and other payables  241,671,502    -    -    -  241,671,502 

 356,194,000    -    -    -  356,194,000 

35.3  Information about valuation technique and inputs used    

Item

Term Deposit 

Certificates

Units of Open-end 

Mutual Funds  

  

Valuation technique and inputs used 

Investment in debt securities (comprising of term finance certificates, bonds, sukuk certificates and any other 

security issued by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of redeemable 

capital) are valued on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in 

accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business day.     
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--------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------------------

35.4  Non-financial assets and liabilities          

           

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring 

basis at  June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.           

36  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES          

It is the responsibiltiy of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and 

to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for 

shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors 

monitor the return on capital, which the Group defines as profit after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also 

monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders.          

The Group finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management 

comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and unappropriated profit.   

There was no change in the Group's approach to capital management during the year except that the Holding Company is subject to minimum 

paid-up capital requirements as prescribed by the SECP. However, the Holding Company is under discussion with SECP for revision in such 

requirements.          

Item

Pakistan Investment 

Bonds and Market 

Treasury Bills

Valuation technique and inputs used 

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page)  

June 30, 2016

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Land-lease hold  427,777,000    -    -  427,777,000  427,777,000 

Building  269,182,466    -    -  269,182,466  269,182,466 

 696,959,466    -    -  696,959,466  696,959,466 

June 30, 2015

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Land-lease hold  427,777,000    -    -  427,777,000  427,777,000 

Building  292,686,971    -    -  292,686,971  292,686,971 

 720,463,971    -    -  720,463,971  720,463,971 
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37  SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

        

The directors in their meeting held on August 31, 2016 have proposed bonus shares @ 53.846% i.e. 35 million shares (2015: Nil) and  cash dividend 

of Re. 0.3077 per share (2015: Rs.3.25 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 3.077% of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2016. The 

consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for 

in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

38  EMPLOYEES

39  DATE OF AUTHORISATION

  These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 180th meeting held on August 31, 2016.

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Number of employees at the end of the year 438 429

Average number of employees during the year 431 408

Chairman

Sd-

Chief Executive Officer

Sd-



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
As at June 30, 2016

No. of Shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
08 shareholding from 1 to 1,000 shares * 4,150

01 shareholding from 1,001 to 65,000 shares 65,000

01 shareholding from 65,001 to 325,000 shares 325,000

01 shareholding from 325,001 to 425,000 shares 422,499

01 shareholding from 425,001 to 650,000 shares 650,000

01 shareholding from 650,001 to 1,625,000 shares 1,625,000

01 shareholding from 1,625,001 to 1,790,000 shares 1,787,000

03 shareholding from 1,790,001 to 3,250,000 shares 9,750,000

01 shareholding from 3,250,001 to 4,125,000 shares 4,124,900

02 shareholding from 4,125,001 to 6,500,000 shares 12,998,850

01 Shareholding from 6,500,001 to 7,500,000 shares 7,374,401

01 shareholding from 7,500,001 to 25,880,000 shares 25,873,200

22 Total 65,000,000

Association.

Categories of Shareholders Shares held Percentage
4,150 -

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 25,875,200 39.80%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- MCB Bank Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited 1,787,500 2.75%

NIT and IDBL

- National Investment Trust Limited 4,124,900 6.35%

- Industrial Development Bank Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

Banks/DFIs/NBFIs

- MCB Bank Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- Habib Bank Limited 7,374,901 11.35%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- National Investment Trust Limited 4,124,900 6.35%

- Industrial Development Bank Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

- NIB Bank Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

- Pak China Investment Company Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

- Allied Bank Limited 650,000 1.00%

- Innovative Investment Bank Limited 325,000 0.50%

- ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 1,625,000 2.5%
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Note:
These are qualification shares given to directors pursuant to Section 187 (h) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with Article 95 of Company’s Articles of 
Association.

Categories of Shareholders Shares held Percentage
Insurance Companies

- IGI Insurance Limited 422,499 0.65%

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

Shareholders holding 5% (or more)

- Pakistan Stock Exchange  Limited 25,875,200 39.80%

- Habib Bank Limited 7,374,901 11.35%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- MCB Bank Limited 6,500,000 10.00%

- National Investment Trust Limited 4,124,900 6.35%

- NIB Bank Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

- Pak China Investment Company Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

- Industrial Development Bank Limited 3,250,000 5.00%

General Public

a.  Local - -

b. Foreign - -

Others

- Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd. 65,000 0.10%
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(Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

WITNESS 2:

Signature of Appointer

WITNESS 1:

Signature:
Name:
Designation:
Address:
CNIC No.:

Signature:
Name:
Designation:
Address:
CNIC No.:

Specimen signature of ProxySpecimen signature of Proxy

Notes:

PROXY FORM
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

We, ___________________________ of ___________, being a member of  Central Depository Company 

of Pakistan Limited holding ______________ ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. 

_____________ and / or CDC Account no. ___________ do hereby appoint Mr. _______________or failing 

him Mr.__________________ as our Proxy in our absence to attend and vote for us, and on our 

behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 22, 2016 or at 

any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ___________ day of _____________ 2016 signed by the said.

1. A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such Corporation or such other Company, is  
 a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or any other person to act as its authorized   
 representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers  
 on behalf of such Corporation or such other Company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote instead of him /  
 her.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in writing or if such  
 appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy  
 of that power or authority alongwith attested CNIC copies or passport of proxy, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company  
 not less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

(Name of Designation)
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OFFICE
ADDRESSES
Registered Office:
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400.
Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500   I   Fax: (92-21) 34326031

 Pakistan Stock Exchange Branch:
Mezzanine Floor, Pakistan Stock Exchange Building,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 32416774   I   Fax: (92-21) 32444491

 Lahore Branch:
307, 2nd Floor, Upper Mall, Lahore – 54000.
Tel: (92-42) 35789378   I   Fax: (92-42) 35789340

Islamabad Branch:
Room # 410, 4th Floor, ISE Towers REIT Management Limited,
55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.
Tel: (92-51) 2895456-9   I   Fax: (92-51) 2895454

Abbottabad Office:
1st Floor, Al-Fateh Shopping Centre, 
Opp. Radio Station, Mansehra Road, Abbottabad. 
Tel: (92-992) 331529-31, (92-992) 408190

 
Email: 
info@cdcpak.com

 
URL: 
www.cdcpakistan.com 

Customer Support Services: 
0800 – 23275 (CDCPL)

For Overseas Callers: 
+92 (21) 34326038
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